
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508  as soon as possible.

AB
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY 23 MARCH 2016
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of  Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of Meetings held on:

3.1 6 January 2016 - Extraordinary Meeting 3 - 8
3.2 25 January 2016 9 - 16
3.3 10 February 2016 - Scrutiny of the Budget 17 - 28

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The purpose of the item is to provide an opportunity for consideration of any 
request to call in a decision.  A Call-in request has been made in relation to 
the decision made by Cabinet which was published on 7 March 2016 
regarding Council Office Consolidation – MAR16/CAB/16.

Exclusion of Press and Public
In accordance with Standing Orders, Members are requested to vote to 
exclude the press and public for the exempt annex which is included within 
the Cabinet report attached at Appendix 2 relating to this item. This contains 
exempt information relating to financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding the information) as defined by 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
The public interest in disclosing this information outweighs the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption.

29 – 52

Public Document Pack



5. Opportunity Peterborough Update Report 53 - 80

6. Local Enterprise Partnership 81 - 88

7. Alternative Governance Arrangements 89 - 96

8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 97 - 126

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

Committee Members:

Councillors: N Sandford (Chair), N Khan (Vice Chairman), M Jamil, D Over, R Brown, C Harper, 
R. Bisby, J A Fox, Whitby and L Ayres

Substitutes: Councillors: S Lane, M Nadeem, J Okonkowski, A Shaheed and L Forbes

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508  or by email – paulina.ford@peteborough.gov.uk

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

file://demapp01/mgDataRoot/AgendaDocs/7/7/3/A00003377/$$Agenda.doc#http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
file://demapp01/mgDataRoot/AgendaDocs/7/7/3/A00003377/$$Agenda.doc#http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


AB
MINUTES OF AN EXTRAORDINAY MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND 

ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD IN THE BOUGES/VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL

ON 6 JANUARY 2016

Present: Councillors Sandford (Chairman), Khan (Vice-Chairman), Jamil, 
Over, Brown, Harper, J A Fox, Whitby and Ayres

Also Present: Councillor JR Fox, Group Leader, Werrington First

Officers Present: Simon Machen, Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration
Andy Tatt, Head of Peterborough Highways Services
Lewis Banks, Principal Transport Planning Officer
Richard Mayes, Principal Transport Contracts and Planning Officer
Philippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bisby.

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations.

3. Call in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

There were no requests for call-in to consider.

4. Review of the Fourth Local Transport Plan

The report was introduced by the Head of Peterborough Highways Services.  The report 
provided the Committee with foresight of the fourth Local Transport Plan (2016-2021), 
including a review of the Long Term Transport Strategy (2011-2026), as part of its progress 
through the democratic process prior to the document’s consideration for adoption at Full 
Council in January 2016. The Head of Peterborough Highways Services highlighted the 
following:

 Improving transport in the Peterborough area was a priority of the Council. A Local 
Transport Plan was produced every five years and addressed existing and potential 
future issues. 

 The Local Transport Plan would support the Local Plan, currently in development.
 The Local Transport Plan set out the Council’s aspirations in light of the current 

financial landscape.
 The Plan was a statutory requirement and was essential in securing funding for 

transport schemes. 

Richard Olive, a representative of Friends of the Earth, addressed the Committee and made 
the following key points:

 The aspirations set out in the Plan were considered to be laudable, however it was 
believed to fall short on actions and outcomes.

 The decrease in car usage identified by Travel Choice was highlighted. It was 
suggested that this may be incorrect as data from the Department of Transport 
indicated a 2% increase in car usage in 2014 and decrease in bus services.

3



 It was suggested that the Plan was not sufficiently proactive and was too reliant on 
third parties to achieve the necessary shift towards sustainable travel.

 A 2010 public consultation had highlighted the desire for orbital movement around the 
city, a permanent park and ride, more bus services after 5pm, better signage on cycle 
ways, more cycle routes, and more security around underpasses.

 It was noted that the creation of a north / south cycle route went some way to address 
this, however it was considered that the public’s concern had been largely ignored.

 The responsibility for increased and improved public transport services had been 
assigned to commercial enterprises, and reliance remained on call connect services 
for rural transport, which was not considered idea.

 Mr Olive was pleased to see the encouraged use of low emissions vehicles, however 
was concerned that the potential consequence of some electric cars had not been 
considered. It was advised that diesel car emissions could be cut by the use of 
‘Eminox Stacks’.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:
 The Committee was pleased to hear about the ‘Park and Stride’ scheme for primary 

schools to help combat parking issues around schools.
The Principal Transport Planning Officer explained that work was continuing with 
schools, including the ‘Park and Stride’ scheme and the ‘Walking Bus’.

 The Committee questioned how the pressure and congestion faced by parents who 
had to drop off children at multiple schools could be alleviated. 
The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration advised that this was a result of the 
pressure on school places and the solution would lie within the Capital Schools 
Programme to place schools in the best locations. The Principal Transport Planning 
Officer explained that work was carried out with schools and head teachers with traffic 
managed through a broad range of schemes.

 The Committee queried how the Local Plan would affect the Local Transport Plan.
The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration advised that the two documents 
should not conflict as they report into the same point. The Local Plan had a more 
extensive approvals process than the Local Transport Plan and as such the Local 
Transport Plan may need to factor in minor changes once the Local Plan was 
approved. 

 The Committee questioned the potential for a Peterborough Park and Ride scheme. 
The Committee further discussed the previous Christmas Park and Ride scheme and 
requested for statistics on the performance of this to be circulated.
The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration explained that officers had drafted 
a realistic document. A Park and Ride scheme in Peterborough was not considered to 
be commercially viable as among other reasons, the city had good central car parking 
facilities. The Principal Transport Contracts and Planning Officer advised that such a 
scheme would initially cost between £2million and £3million, with an annual running 
cost of £500,000.

 The Committee discussed congestion within the city and stated that travel had 
improved since the highway improvements along Bourges Boulevard. It was 
considered that in comparison to similar cities Peterborough did not suffer from 
congestion. It was noted however that future growth would need to be catered for.

 A Member of the Committee commented that one of the new pedestrian crossings 
across Bourges Boulevard allowed a significantly long time for pedestrians to cross, 
which could be reduced. The Head of Peterborough Highways Services advised that 
this would be taken into account when the new arrangements were reviewed.

Transport Issus and Challenges
 The Committee referred to the decrease in car use as found by Travel Choice and 

questioned whether these were correct. 
The Principal Transport Planning Officer advised that these statistics had been 
reached from surveying a number of households. The answers were based on how 

4



household members had answered and not traffic statistics, which may have distorted 
the results. It was however believed that a 9% decrease in car use was accurate.

 A question was raised regarding the potential for orbital bus routes around the city 
alongside the reliance on one provider.
The Principal Transport Contracts and Planning Officer explained that the operator 
had increased patronage by 50% since the introduction of the Citi brand network in 
2004. The services currently worked on a ‘hub and spokes’ model, which allowed for 
cross-city connectivity. Orbital routes generally resulted in longer journeys. 

 The Committee discussed the management of road works and how best to ensure 
that traffic was disrupted as little as possible.   The Head of Peterborough Highways 
Services advised that regular communication was had with the highways services to 
co-ordinate works. Often works were subject to deadline conditional funding which 
made timings of work more inflexible.

 The Committee questioned how enforcement was carried out on Heavy Goods 
Vehicles driving through restricted areas and parking on the roads. This was 
particularly in relation to parking on the roads around Kingston Park.
The Head of Peterborough Highways Services advised that it was for the police to 
enforce against drivers who drove through restricted areas. Similarly, the roads 
around Kingston Park had recently had parking restrictions added, as such, the police 
would be able to carry out enforcement action. Officers were aware of the matter and 
were liaising with local businesses. 

Transport Vision
 The Committee discussed the enhancement of cycling provisions within the city as a 

priority. A Member of the Committee believed that the public should be consulted on 
whether the cycle ban in Bridge Street should be lifted or not. The Committee further 
discussed whether a self-service cycle hire scheme, similar to that in London, would 
be appropriate for the city.  The Principal Transport Planning Officer clarified that a 
cycle hire scheme was already in place from the train station. The provision of a self-
service scheme could be considered. 
The Head of Peterborough Highways Services advised that cycle routes were 
proposed to fan out either side of Bridge Street to navigate around the city. 

 The Committee requested an addition to the policy ‘To work with authorities in 
Cambridgeshire to harmonise taxi and Private Hire Vehicle standards across the 
county’.

 The reference to supporting new development on surplus and underused land around 
the station was discussed by the Committee. 
The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration explained that this land presented 
an opportunity to develop residential commuter hubs.

 The Committee discussed the Stamford and Spalding rail lines and suggested that 
smaller stations should be added to these lines as part of a more long term vision. 
The Principal Transport Contracts and Planning Officer advised that additional 
stations on the East Coast Main Line would be impractical, as this was a fast train 
service. Other lines were in the control of Network Rail and not the Council however 
the Council could support such proposals. 

 The Committee questioned whether any progress had been made in terms of real 
time bus service information and evening bus services.
The Principal Transport Contracts and Planning Officer advised that the evening bus 
services were supported through a voluntary partnership agreement. The 
development of real time service information was in progress. Screens were included 
within bus stop upgrades and live information was available via smart phone 
application.

 The Committee discussed whether a policy had previously existed to encourage city 
centre employees to park in outer car parks to allow car parks near the city core to be 
free for shoppers to use for short term parking.

5



 The Committee questioned whether plans to close a number of level crossing were 
still in place.  The Principal Transport Contracts and Planning Officer informed the 
Committee that officers were meeting to discuss a temporary traffic regulation in 
relation to the Lolham level crossing. Plans were still in place by National Rail to close 
the level crossing. These however, had been delayed.  

 The Committee questioned what was being done to mitigate against traffic noise 
along the main roads into the city. The Head of Peterborough Highways Services 
explained that a particular type of surfacing material was used along these roads to 
reduce noise and reduce the amount of spray.

 Discussion was had surrounding air pollution within the city and how best this could 
be communicated to the public. The Principal Transport Planning Officer agreed that 
this would send a strong message if communicated appropriately.

Long Term Transport Strategy
 The extension of the bus services timetable at evenings and weekends was included 

within the Plan.
The Principal Transport Planning Officer advised that this was identified in the plan as 
dependant on developer funding. It was clarified that CIL funding was not available to 
use as funding of the extension of bus services.

 The Committee discussed the section of the A605 behind Cardea and whether there 
were any road expansion plans.
The Head of Peterborough Highways Services advised that infrastructure was in 
place to enable an expansion however such a proposal would be dependent on 
developer funding. 

Local Transport Plan 4
 The Committee questioned why the majority of the Schemes outlined within the Plan 

were highway related when the user hierarchy indicated that pedestrians, those with 
mobility difficulties and cyclists were the highest priority. 
The Principal Transport Planning Officer explained that the major schemes proposed 
in the Plan were tied into the overall growth of the city and central Government 
funding. It was anticipated that further funding would be made available from 
Government for cycling and pedestrian schemes.

 The Committee discussed the pattern of residential developments being situated 
away from employment sites, creating a requirement for individuals to commute. 
The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration advised that this was often a result 
of lack of demand for employment space within smaller residential development. 
However, with big scale developments multiple uses were more viable and were 
encouraged.

Transport Policy and Strategy
 The Committee discussed alternative travel methods in the core of the city such as 

cycling or pedestrianisation. The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration 
responded that public realm schemes were being considered for areas such as 
Broadway and Westgate, to reduce the number of vehicles.

 The Committee requested an update on the policy ‘Discourage long-term parking in 
the core area through a pricing regime that is competitive with the prevailing market’.

 The Committee discussed possible restrictions on deliveries in the city core and 
whether this would be detrimental to certain businesses. The Corporate Director 
Growth and Regeneration advised that such restrictions would be proposed where 
appropriate and would not be used to unduly restrict business.

 The matter of access to the city core for those with mobility impairment was 
discussed. It was highlighted that disabled parking needed to be provided as close to 
the city core as possible. The Committee questioned whether any progress had been 
made to designate additional car parking spaces behind the Town Hall as disabled 
parking. The Head of Peterborough Highways Services advised that the Disability 

6



Forum was engaged in relation to all major schemes. Expanding the disabled parking 
at the rear of the Town Hall was not currently planned but would be considered.

Major and Minor Schemes
 A Member of the Committee raised issues around the Taverners Road / Lincoln Road 

junction and the congestion experienced there. The Head of Peterborough Highways 
Services agreed to meet with Councillor Khan and discuss the particular issues in 
that area.

 The Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration clarified that funding was primarily 
for highway works. In line with the Council’s priorities and work was carried out to 
incorporate pedestrian and cycle improvements into such schemes.

A recommendation was proposed and seconded for officers to undertake a public 
consultation on the removal of the cycle ban along Bridge Street. Following a vote, the 
recommendation was defeated. Councillor Sandford requested that his vote in favour of the 
proposal be recorded. Councillor J A Fox requested that her vote against the proposal be 
recorded. 

A recommendation was proposed for the Fourth Local Transport Plan to be altered to 
explicitly state which commitments identified in previous Local Transport Plans had not been 
continued. This recommendation was not seconded. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee recommended that:

1) Air quality is monitored in the Fourth Local Transport Plan in a manner that is easy to 
understand and would allow Peterborough to be compared to other cities; and

2) The long term aspiration to support the addition of further stations along the Stamford 
and Spalding train lines be included within the Fourth Local Transport Plan and the 
council will pursue these aspirations with the relevant rail authorities.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee:

1) Requested that information relating to the past Christmas Park and Ride scheme be 
circulated;

2) Requested that officers check whether a policy was included in the Third Local 
Transport Plan to encourage city centre employees to park in outer car parks to allow 
car parks near the city core to be free for shoppers to use for short term parking. If 
such a policy did exist and had been changed or removed then an explanation would 
be provided.

3) Requested an update be circulated on the policy ‘To work with authorities in 
Cambridgeshire to harmonise taxi and Private Hire Vehicle standards across the 
county’;

4) Requested an update be circulated on the policy ‘Discourage long-term parking in the 
core area through a pricing regime that is competitive with the prevailing market’; and

5) Requested that the Head of Peterborough Highways Service meet with Councillor 
Khan to discuss issues at Taverners Road.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9:15pm CHAIRMAN

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 

CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 HELD IN THE BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL 

ON 25 JANUARY 2016

Present: Councillors Sandford (Chairman), N Khan MBE (Vice Chairman),
D Over, L Ayres, R Brown, C Harper, R Bisby, M Jamil, JA Fox, J 
Whitby

Also Present: Councillor JR Fox, Group Leader, Werrington First
Councillor N Thulbourn
Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing 
and Economic Development

Officers Present: Simon Machen, Corporate Director for Growth and Regeneration
Howard Bright, Head of Growth
Anne Keogh, Housing and Strategic Planning Manager
Caroline Hannon, Senior Housing Strategy & Enabling Officer
Lewis Banks, Principal Transport Planning Officer
Amy Petri, Principal Programme & Project Officer
Peter Garnham, Highway Service Delivery Manager
Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence 

No apologies for absence were received.

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

Item 5. Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing 
and Economic Development

Councillor Harper declared an interest in that he was Chairman of the Planning and 
Environmental Protection Committee. 

There were no whipping declarations.

3. Minutes of Meetings held on 12 November 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2015 were approved as an accurate 
record.

4. Call in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

There were no requests for call-in to consider.

5. Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing 
and Economic Development

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and 
Economic Development.  The report provided the Committee with an update on the progress 
of the growth, strategic planning, strategic housing and economic engagement and business 
development areas of the Cabinet Member’s portfolio.

9



Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

Growth
 In light of the fact that the Westgate development and Queensgate cinema development 

is going to Judicial Review, was there any danger of the Queensgate owners spending 
their money elsewhere?  Members were informed that due to there being a Judicial 
Review detailed discussion on the subject could not take place.  The Director for Growth 
and Regeneration advised that any disgruntled party could seek Judicial Review if not 
happy with the planning approval process and whilst this did not happen very often it was 
more likely to happen with retail and leisure developments. 

 What was the current situation with the Judicial Review?  Members were informed that 
the Council was confident in its decision making and had met with and continued to have 
dialogue with both parties.

 Was there anything that the Council could do to speed up this process? Members were 
advised that under the Local Plan, the Council was permitted to use compulsory 
purchase powers to facilitate a development in North Westgate.  The Council had very 
limited land ownership interests in North Westgate but due to the presence of the 
Peterborough Investment Partnership the Council could in the future get involved and 
bring forward development on the complex brown field sites.

 Members were informed that the land in North Westgate was owned by various land 
owners but it was one owner who had applied for the Judicial Review.

 Was the council confident that the growth, as referred to in the report was truly 
sustainable in terms of the requirement of houses being constructed and the facilities 
which were being built in conjunction with the houses? Members were informed that this 
was correct to the best of the council’s belief.  There was a very large growth agenda for 
the city and the authority was keen to ensure that the infrastructure was in place before 
large scale developments were given permission to go ahead.

 Members highlighted that there had been many complaints from residents about a lack of 
public transport and community facilities around the Manor Drive area.  Members were 
informed that older development schemes had tended to have less infrastructure facilities 
but in similar situations in the future planning decisions about community infrastructure 
would be decided differently.

 Members commented that some developers did not build the infrastructure that they had 
initially intended to in their original planning application and asked what could be done to 
stop this happening?  Members were informed that every application that the local 
authority approved had a time limit.  Under the current system the local authority could 
not force a developer to start developing their site however the government was looking 
at ways to force developers to develop their land.  An example was that they may make 
developers pay council tax after a set time period even if they had not built any houses. 
There were ongoing discussions with local developers to encourage them to start 
building.

 Members asked if it was still the plan for the Manor Farm development to go across 
Gunthorpe Road.   Members was advised that the Norwood Side of the Paston Norwood 
Reserve Allocation would come forward to the Planning and Environmental Protection 
Committee later that week due to a variation of the S106 Agreement on the Paston side 
partly to accelerate the delivery of the primary school.  There would also be an allocation 
for a secondary school. The whole site would be developed and this year the Council with 
support from the Local Enterprise Partnership would undertake capacity improvement 
works on junction 20 to help unlock that development.

 Members wanted to know what was stopping the council building their own houses.  
Members were advised that the Council could not build council houses because the 
council had not retained their housing stock and was not a registered provider.  However 
houses could be built in partnership with other organisations that have house building 
expertise and this was being looked at. 

10



 How much office space was there in Peterborough?  Members were advised that there 
was office space available in Peterborough and that permission had been granted for a 
swathe of further office space on the Fletton Quays site. The Council had no control over 
the loss of office floor space in the city centre to residential apartment developments.  
Fletton Quays would aim to provide high quality, purpose built and contemporary office 
space.

Strategic Planning
 Members referred to paragraph 5.20 and the interest in ‘neighbourhood planning’ 

continuing to grow. Were all of the neighbourhood plans in parished areas?  If so, what 
was happening to enable those areas which were not parished to participate in 
neighbourhood planning? Members were advised that seven neighbourhood plans had 
been brought forward and all of these were from parished areas but a properly 
constituted community association can also participate in neighbourhood planning.  The 
council would assist anyone wishing to create a neighbourhood plan but it was for areas 
to choose to do this themselves.

 Members were concerned that the neighbourhood plans were more applicable to rural 
areas and not urban areas.

 Could the council further assist small populations or by parish councils coming together 
to put forward a neighbourhood plan? Some smaller communities had found it was a very 
complex process to try and produce a neighbourhood plan. Members were advised that 
parish councils could work together to combine their expertise and professionalism to 
produce their own neighbourhood plans.  

 Members requested that an officer contact Parish Councils to extend the Council’s offer 
to help with the creation of neighbourhood plans.  Members were advised that 
Peterborough City Council currently assisted with the neighbourhood planning process 
and that there was an officer whose remit this was under.  The role of the Council was to 
offer technical support, not to coordinate.  The plans would need to be parish or 
community association led.

 Members commented that the neighbourhood planning process was very difficult and that 
small voluntary organisations often lacked expertise in the area which resulted in the 
plans not coming to fruition.

 The Corporate Director for Growth and Regeneration provided clarity with regard to the 
old style neighbourhood/community action plans and the current statutory neighbourhood 
plans which was part of the Local Plan process and advised that there was clear 
guidance in place to assist communities in developing community plans.

Strategic Housing
 Could links with Fenland District Council and East Cambridgeshire District Council be 

used to put forward a regional strategy?  Members were advised that this was already in 
place with Rutland County Council, South Holland District Council and South Kesteven 
District Council in the form of the Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

 Members referred to paragraph 5.25 and sought clarification with regard to the statement 
about the best value for the £multi-million affordable housing capital fund and a proposed 
change to Council policy.   Members were informed that the council had approximately 
£14M of right to buy receipts from former housing stock and approximately £3M of S106 
monies to provide affordable housing.  Historically this was given away as grants to 
housing associations.  This statement in the report was alluding to how something 
different could be done to recycle the fund to support housing delivery in the city.

Economic Engagement and Business Development
 Members were advised that UKTI stood for UK Trade and Investment which was a 

government body.
 What have Slough Borough Council done to overtake Peterborough in the growth 

statistics?  Members were advised that Slough was a hug, urban area and very different 

11



from Peterborough.  It was accessible by the M4 and had close links to Windsor and 
London.

 What was being done to help regenerate the older part of the city?  Members were 
advised that old sites were being developed into housing and the station quarter, Fletton 
Quays and North Westgate were areas that would be renewed.  Second rate office stock 
across the city was being replaced with residential accommodation and there was also 
the public realm investment.

 Had the development of Alconbury air base had any undue influence on the development 
of Peterborough and in particular South of Peterborough?  Members were advised that 
the answer to this question was no because little progress on the development at 
Alconbury  had been made.

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for presenting an informative report and 
responding to questions raised by the Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommended that Cabinet examine the ways in which Parish Councils and 
local communities can be given a greater amount of support in the creation of neighbourhood 
plans.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee noted the report and requested the following information:
 A briefing note on the proposals for the Paston Reserve Development and public 

transport issues for the Norwood site.

6. Task and Finish Group Report – Review of Peterborough Strategic Housing Strategy
                

The report was introduced by the Chairman of the Task and Finish Group and provided the 
Committee with an interim progress report following the Task and Finish Group’s review of 
the existing Housing Strategy and formulation of initial recommendations regarding the 
priorities for the next Housing Strategy.  The Chairman of the Task and Finish Group 
highlighted the following:

 The report was an interim report due to the fact that the timing of the refreshed Housing 
Strategy had been extended due to the publication of the Housing and Planning Bill in 
October 2015 the proposals of which could have a far reaching effect on the future of 
housing delivery, particularly affordable housing.

 The number of houses, the quality of houses and the locality for rural areas were the 
biggest pressures; and

 It was recommended that the Task and Finish Group continue in order to connect the 
Strategic Housing Strategy up with the Local Plan.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:
 What would the timescales be for finalising the future Housing Strategy?  Members were 

advised that the Housing and Planning Bill had gone through the House of Commons and 
would then go through the House of Lords.  The date for this had not yet been publicised 
and it was likely that various changes would occur.  It was hoped that by the summer the 
Council would be in a much better place to move forward with the Housing Strategy.

 The Senior Democratic Services Officer clarified that if the Task and Finish Group were 
to continue into the next municipal year it would need to be reconstituted. 

 Could the council set up an agency to build homes that were affordable but not council 
houses and could financial assistant be put in place to enable people to have a loan from 
the council to enable them to buy their first home.  Members were informed that the Task 
and Finish group were recommending that a range of financial tools are set up to enable 
people to  get onto the housing market and officers were looking into this.

12



 Officers provided the Committee with further context regarding statistics provided to the 
Task and Finish Group and advised that within the statistics provided the Strategic 
Housing Market Assessment calculates that 1005 new homes would need to be built per 
year to meet the identified housing need in Peterborough and 620 of these homes should 
be affordable housing.  This calculation is based on evidence of past population growth 
trends, the demographics of the area, the likely formation of new households in the future 
and the likely size of new households. It also takes into account the affordability of homes 
in the area.

 Members referred to the figures included on page 25 of the report which was a 
breakdown of housing requirements as identified by the Task and Finish Group for the 
next 5 years. Members wanted to know why they had been included as they were not 
targets that could be included in the Housing Strategy. Members were advised that the 
Task and Finish Group felt the figures represented an ideal solution to relieve pressures 
adequately.  The Task and Finish Group came up with their own criteria and this 
information was a minimum suggestion of how this could be achieved.  The figures did 
not take into account development viability and were the opinion of members of the Task 
and Finish Group and only asked the Committee to note their findings. 

 It was clarified that the Local Plan had a target of 30% affordable housing (split between 
affordable rental and shared equity housing) on schemes of 15 houses or more.

 Members commented that the Task and Finish Group’s figures for executive housing 
were low and that this could act as a disincentive for developers in Peterborough. 
Members were advised that although that might be possible the Task and Finish Group 
had identified that the current largest need in Peterborough was for affordable housing to 
buy and rent.  The recommendation for a financial tool kit to be developed would 
hopefully assist this issue.

 Members commented that there seemed to be a disparity between the demand for 
affordable housing and the supply. Members were informed that the grant had 
disappeared for affordable housing so it was more difficult for housing associations to 
build rented homes.

 Members were advised that the Task and Finish Group had looked at specific strategic 
issues within the Housing Strategy as opposed to the entire plan as a whole.  Issues 
such as open spaces and infrastructure would be covered in the Local Plan.  The 
Housing Strategy would support these elements of the Local Plan.  The Housing Strategy 
would also need to link to the Environment Capital Action Plan.

Councillor Khan recommended that the Task and Finish Group continued to review the 
Housing Strategy once the outcomes and impact of the Housing and Planning Bill have been 
identified and if possible the Task and Finish Group membership should be the same group 
of people.  The Committee unanimously agreed to this recommendation.

Councillor Khan, seconded by Councillor Jamil also recommended that the figures as 
identified by the Task and Finish Group regarding the breakdown of housing requirements for 
Peterborough be noted. Councillor Ayres objected to the recommendation and called for a 
vote. The Committee took a vote on the recommendation to note the following figures (5 in 
favour, 5 against):

A breakdown of the housing requirements as identified by the working group
i/ Affordable Rent Housing 40%
ii/ Affordable to Buy Housing   35%
iii/ Health Housing             8%
iv/ Executive Housing             12%
v/ Prestige Housing              5%

Due to an equality of votes, the Chairman used his casting vote and voted in favour of the 
recommendation to note the Task and Finish Group’s housing figures.  The recommendation 
was therefore carried.

13



One member sought assurance on whether the Chairman was allowed to use his casting 
vote. The Senior Democratic Services Officer provided clarification of the Standing Orders 
and confirmed that the Chairman could use his casting vote.

The Chairman thanked the members of the Task and Finish for their interim report and the 
considerable work undertaken so far.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee noted the report and made the following recommendations:

The Task and Finish Group to continue into the next municipal year and if possible with the 
same membership. 

That the Task and Finish Group’s housing figures as suggested in the interim report be 
noted: 

A breakdown of housing requirements as identified by the working group
i/ Affordable Rent Housing 40%
ii/ Affordable to Buy Housing   35%
iii/ Health Housing             8%
iv/ Executive Housing             12%
v/ Prestige Housing              5%

7. Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17

The report was introduced by the Principal Programme & Project Officer and provided the 
Committee with information regarding the Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 
2016/17 before submission to the Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic Planning, Housing, 
Economic Development and Business Engagement for approval.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

 Members referred to page 35 of the report, Footbridge Safety Schemes. What 
improvements would be made to the Queensgate Footbridge?  The Corporate Director 
responded that the funding was for some temporary reinstatement works and that there 
was a proposal through the Local Enterprise Partnership for a comprehensive 
refurbishment of the footbridge in future plans.  A decision had been made to keep the 
footbridge and the current Queensgate owners had expressed that once improved, they 
may take on the ownership of the footbridge.

 Members referred to page 31, Appendix A, Integrated Transport Programme 2016/2017 
table.  Under the section Core Bus routes why had the Eastfield Road location been 
prioritised in the new bus route plans?  Members were advised that it had been linked to 
the sustainable travel initiative which had offered £900,000 of revenue to support 
sustainable transport.  The bid was structured in a focused approach to intensively target 
the east of the city.  Infrastructure would be improved on Eastfield Road to facilitate this.

 Real Time Passenger Information (RTPI).  Did this refer to upgrading existing RTPI’s?  
Members were informed that this was about expanding this technology to new bus stops 
that currently did not have the technology.

 Members referred to page 33, Carriageway surface dressing treatment.  Some areas of 
treatment had not been as effective as anticipated. Could it be ensured that carriageway 
surface dressing treatment was completed effectively especially in areas with lots of 
learner drivers?  Members were advised that this programme was becoming more 
challenging and that the Council were trying to implement the programme in some of the 
through routes across the city.  Challenges arose with power steering which caused 
circles where the chippings had come off of the road but a product would be used to 
improve the embedment of the chippings.

14



 Street column replacement budget.  How was it decided which streetlamps would use the 
brighter bulbs and which would use the less bright and orange lights?  Members were 
advised that each year a regime of structural and electrical testing occurred and columns 
were identified which needed replacing.  Prioritised streets where there was a high need 
for replacement were fitted with cast iron and concrete columns. The Corporate Director 
advised that the street lighting columns and the network supporting them was at the end 
of its shelf life and therefore  proposals would be brought forward in the near future for 
intensive investment in street lighting using an area based approach.

 Could Peterborough move to an off-white LED streetlight to eradicate the sleep related 
problems caused by the white/blue LED streetlights?  Members were advised that all 
LEDs used were certified to European standards and that the back spill from the lights 
was far less than from the older orange lights.  There were options to dim lights where 
they were too close to a house and too bright.

 Members commented that where street columns had been replaced the street furniture 
on the columns had not been replaced and requested that this be done.  The Corporate 
Director advised that the need for signs on streetlights would be balanced alongside the 
need to reduce street clutter.

 Members reminded officers that the Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities had 
stated that in rural areas street lighting columns should be black.

 Members referred to paragraph 3.2, on page 27, Air Quality and stated that this was the 
only mention of air quality within the report despite it being an important issue and 
suggested that a measure of air quality be shown on the screen in Long Causeway.

 Members referred to page 31, Dropped Kerb Programme. Who is the Council going to 
liaise with to get dropped kerbs put in place.  Members were advised that the dropped 
kerb programme was an annual programme and would target entire streets.  There was a 
dropped kerb request database which would be used to determine areas of demand and 
suitability.

 Ward councillors were concerned that they were not being informed when maintenance 
schemes affecting there area were being put in place.  Members were informed that ward 
councillors should be informed and would note that this should be done.

 How was the programme of works list determined?  Members were informed that In 
relation to highway maintenance, an asset management principle was applied to 
determine which areas would be serviced.  All roads were surveyed each year except 
unclassified roads where 25% were assessed over a four year cycle.  This data was 
collected in accordance with national standards and a road condition index score was 
produced.  This was then considered with factors such as location and environment to 
produce a final score.  The budget would then be applied to the highest of these scores.

 What was a reserved scheme?  Members were informed that reserved schemes were 
those schemes just below the cut-off point.  These may be undertaken if the higher 
priority schemes could be achieved below the estimated budget.

 Members were informed that the Lincoln Road area would be a topic of discussion for 
future funding for integrated transport and highways maintenance projects.  Public realm 
funding may be used for regeneration.

 What could be done to ensure that utility companies left roads and footpaths that have 
undergone work in as high a standard as they were before the work was undertaken? 
Members were advised that utilities have to meet a minimum standard of reinstatement 
and if they did not the Council could defect the work and order the utility company to 
return and put it right.

 Members praised the new bus shelters that had been implemented and asked the 
following questions:

o Could the £9,000 given to Wards in the past for improvements be reinstated?  
Members were advised that this could not happen. 

o How much money is allocated to new pedestrian crossings and how much do they 
cost?  Members were advised that the Council received a block allocation from 
the Department for Transport and this was split as part of the consultation 
process.  Each crossing would vary depending on the width of the road and 

15



whether brand new equipment would be placed or an upgrade.  The officer 
advised that they would provide this information outside of the meeting.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee noted the report and requested the following information:
 The Principal Programme & Project Officer would ask senior colleagues for more 

information on funding and costs of pedestrian crossings.

8.      Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

The Committee received the latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions, 
containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following month.  Members were 
invited to comment on the Forward Plan and where appropriate identify any relevant areas 
for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee noted the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions and requested further 
information on the following:

 A briefing note to be provided on the Key Decision - Award of Contract for Build of a 
Waste Transfer Station – KEY/18APR14/02.

9.      Work Programme 2015/2016

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2015/16 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion.

ACTION AGREED

To confirm the work programme for 2015/16 and the Senior Democratic Services Officer to 
include any additional items as requested during the meeting.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.32pm CHAIRMAN

16



AB
MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEES AND 

COMMISSIONS 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER- TOWN HALL 

ON 10 FEBRUARY 2016

Present: Councillors N Sandford (Chairman), K Aitken, C Ash, L Ayres,
R Bisby, R Brown, C Harper,  A Iqbal, D Over, J Peach, B Rush,
S Scott,  C Ash,  R Ferris, L Forbes, D Fower, JA Fox, JR Fox,
F Fox, D Harrington, N Khan, G Nawaz, J Davidson, S Martin,
J Okonkowski, B Saltmarsh,  J Whitby, J Yonga

Also Present: Co-opted Member for Scrutiny Commission for Rural Communities: 
Jo Dobson, 
Councillor Holdich, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Education, Skills and University, and Communications
Councillor Fitzgerald, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Integrated Adult Social Care and Health
Councillor North, Cabinet Member for Communities and  
Environment Capital 
Councillor Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources
Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street 
Scene
Councillor Hiller, Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing 
and Economic Development
Councillor Coles, Cabinet Member for Children’s Services 
Councillor Serluca, Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, 
Culture & Tourism

Officers Present: Gillian Beasley, Chief Executive
John Harrison, Corporate Director of Resources
Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance
Wendi Ogle-Welbourn, Corporate Director of People and 
Communities
Simon Machen, Corporate Director of Growth and Regeneration
Dr Liz Robin, Director of Public Health
Steven Pilsworth, Service Director, Financial Services
Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer

The Chair welcomed everyone present and explained that the purpose of the meeting was to 
provide an opportunity for all Members of each Scrutiny Committee and Commission to 
scrutinise Phase 2 of the 2016/17 Budget, Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 as part 
of the formal consultation process before being presented to Cabinet on 29 February 2016 and 
Full Council on 9 March 2016.

17



1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Councillors Sanders, Shaheed, Jamil, and Murphy.  Councillors 
Nawaz and Davidson were in attendance as substitutes for Councillors Sanders and Shaheed.  
The following co-opted members also sent apologies: Alistair Kingsley, Miranda Robinson, 
Andrew Read, Stuart Francis, Henry Clark, Keith Lievesley

Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Stokes, Acting Cabinet Adviser for 
Children’s Safeguarding, Councillor Casey, Cabinet Advisor to the Cabinet Member for City 
Centre Management, Culture and Tourism (Culture and Recreation) and Councillor Lamb, 
Cabinet Member for Public Health.

Apologies were also received from David Whiles, Representative from Healthwatch.

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

No declarations of interest or whipping declarations were received.

3. Minutes of Meeting held on 26 November 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2015 were approved as an accurate record.

4. Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Plan to 2025/26

Members were given an overview of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Budget by the 
Cabinet Member for Resources.  The following key points were highlighted:

• Overview:
• No reduction to services – in either phase 1 or 2
• Investment in key services for residents
• Proposed 2 per cent council tax rise
• Proposed 2 per cent Adult Social Care Levy
• Balanced budget for 2016/17
• Budget deficit for 2017/18 currently expected to be £5.3m

• Achievements in Peterborough and better value
• Financial challenge 2016/2017
• Investments
• Approach to savings
• Council Tax – extra 2% for Adult Social Care
• Council Tax – 4% for residents
• Next steps

Each section of the budget was then taken in order according to how it was presented in the 
Budget Book.  Each section was introduced by the relevant Corporate Director before Cabinet 
Members took questions from the Committee.

18



Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

Adult Social Care Levy of 2%.  It does 
not specify within the budget papers what 
this money will be spent on.  Which 
aspects of Adult Social Care will the 
money be spent on.

The specific details are yet to be identified but the 
spend on Adult Social Care will increase by £1.2m in 
2016/17.  The specifics of the calculation are still to be 
released by the government.

Members were pleased to see the extra 
£100K being spent on public transport 
and congratulated the Cabinet Member 
on this increase.

How would the council sell the increase 
of a 4% council tax increase to the 
general public?

It was important to highlight the number of 
investments being made in the city and note that it 
was only the second increase in council tax in over six 
years. It therefore averaged out at approximately 1% 
a year.   Peterborough also had the lowest council tax 
in Cambridgeshire.  The council tax increase may 
have to  be 1.99% to avoid the referendum limit of 2%.  
The regulations regarding this had however not been 
announced yet.

Members noted that the government had 
recently announced some generous 
settlements to some authorities and they 
were therefore getting a better deal.  
Would this apply to this authority?

The final grant settlement announced yesterday 
showed a loss of £4K to our authority between the 
preliminary and the final grant settlement.  More 
money had however been found for some county 
councils and rural authorities.

4. Introduction of the  Budget 
and Overall Budget Position 
including Report of the Chief 
Officer, Revenue Outturn 
Forecast and Budget Proposals, 
Key Figures & Cash Limits and 
Council Tax.  

Would it be better to raise the council tax 
by 4% so that the money could be spent 
on any service area not just Adult Social 
Care.

It could not be raised to 4% as there would have to be 
a referendum.

19



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

Members commented on the fact that 
87% of the schools within the authority 
were rated as good or better but this did 
not give a true reflection of the reality.   It 
was understood that the new Head of 
Education would be pushing to improve 
attainment levels.  Would this have an 
impact on the budget?

The Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and 
University and Communications informed Members 
that it was his ambition to drive educational attainment 
up. Schools were improving but it would take time to 
see this comes come through in the examination 
results.  There should not be any implications on the 
budget.

Had any work been done on securing a 
valuation of the registration of the Mayors 
Car?

A valuation of the registration of the Mayors car was 
undertaken a few years ago.  This information would 
be provided.  There were no proposals in the budget 
to do anything in relation to the registration of the 
Mayors car at present.

The Committee noted the presentation made by the Cabinet Member for Resources.
ACTION

The Director of Governance to provide information regarding the valuation of the Mayors Car registration plate.

5.      People and Communities
         Schedule G, Appendix 2  

(Pages 169 - 174)

Page 171, St Georges Community 
Hydrotherapy Pool.  Members were 
pleased to see that financial support 
would continue until 2018/19 but noted 
that the building would require significant 
investment given its current condition.  
The council could not do this on its own 
and were therefore seeking additional 
investment from partner organisations 
council.  Members sought assurance that 
this additional investment was being 
vigorously sought and the pool would not 
be allowed to close.

It was an important asset and discussions were 
ongoing with other partner organisations like health 
and to try and get the costs down.

20



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

Should provision be made in the capital 
programme for the investment in the St 
Georges’s hydrotherapy pool?

The council was working with St Georges to bring 
additional funding in from other areas.  There is no 
additional funding in the capital programme to provide 
capital investment in the big works required.  

Members commented that the 
government were looking to cut the 
schools support grant.  The suggestion 
was that the local authority will no longer 
be responsible for admissions or school 
improvement.  If this is the case will this 
have budget implications and will this 
mean losing staff from this area of work.

There will be a consultation in regard to the changes 
the government want to make regarding the 
responsibilities the local authorities will have going 
forward.   It was the belief that the local authority 
would continue to have a quality assurance role and 
therefore staff would be retained.  It is not anticipated 
that there would be any budgetary implications.

Page 173, Clare Lodge – additional 
income through expansion.  Could the 
capacity at Clare Lodge be increased 
without the need for any investment?

The investment was coming from the Department for 
Education and therefore no investment was required 
from the council.

Operation Can do Board.  There is no 
mention of funding for the Can do Board 
and the work it is leading on.  Will funding 
come out of existing resources.

Yes.

St Georges Hydrotherapy pool.  The 
question of the continuation of the 
hydrotherapy pool continues to be raised 
each year.  Was this therefore a good 
investment to fund something that was in 
such poor condition?

The Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care 
and Health informed Members that it was not the 
responsibility of the council to run the hydrotherapy 
pool; it was a health care responsibility.  However the 
council recognised the importance of the pool and 
need for it and therefore have assisted in keeping it 
going.

The Committee noted this section of the budget. 

21



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

Members thanked Cabinet for listening to 
ward councillors and reinstating the 
Spring Clean and noted the increased 
cleansing of the city centre.

The Cabinet Member of Digital, Waste and Street 
Scene advised that city centre cleansing was being 
increased due to the increase in volume of people and 
therefore producing more volume of rubbish.  The 
Spring Clean will target all wards.
The Cabinet Member for Resources commented that 
all councillors had a representative on the Budget 
Working Group and if councillors felt that there should 
be more investment in a particular service area they 
should inform their representative to feed into the 
working group.

Page 178.  What is the budget for the 
Christmas decorations?

The budget for Christmas decorations is £110,000 per 
year and this had been reduced down to £80,000 per 
year.

6.      Resources including 
Strategic Commissioning 
and Partnerships

         Schedule G,  Appendix 3  
(Pages 175 –   185)

Green Flag Status.  Does the Council 
have any say with the Environment 
Agency regarding the introduction of 
fishing at Cuckoos Hollow and possibly 
being rolled out to Ferry Meadows.  By 
doing this it would incorporate a revenue 
income into the council.

A member commented that this had been 
discussed at Werrington Neighbourhood 
Council and the outcome was that fishing 
was not wanted at Cuckoos Hollow.

Members requested that the Cabinet 
Member for Resources approach the 
Environment Agency to discuss the 
possibility of the council receiving 

The council would need to own the lake to receive an 
income from rod licences.  Any income from rod 
licences would go to the Environment Agency.  
Fishing can be a profitable business.  A business 
called Embryo Angling Habitats had been set up and 
were looking at leasing at least one lake in the city.  
There were several lakes in the city that were not 
being looked after and discussions were being held 
with Embryo Angling Habitats to see if they could 
clean up some of the lakes. 

22



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

revenue from rod licences for lakes that 
they may be responsible for.

Members were particularly pleased to 
note that the city-wide deep Spring Clean 
programme had been reintroduced and 
requested that if possible it be brought 
forward to start before the new financial 
year.  This would ensure that the city 
looked cleaner going into the Spring 
season.

Members were informed of the process.  Amey know 
that they have the contract for the Spring Clean and 
that they would be receiving the money however the 
money could not be released until the budget had 
been confirmed on 9 March at Full Council.  If all 
Members would like the Spring Clean to start earlier 
then the Chairman in his capacity of Chair of Chairs 
would have the facility to waive this and use his power 
of urgency. 

The Chairman responded that he would need to be 
advised by the Director of Governance to see if the 
special urgency provision could be applied. 

The Chairman asked the committee if 
they were all in agreement with the 
recommendation from Councillor Peach 
to request Cabinet to consider instructing 
Amey to start the Spring Clean prior to 
the budget being confirmed on 9 March 
at Full Council.

The recommendation was unanimously 
agreed.
Green Flags.  It was the hope of the 
council to get more green flags.  Perhaps 
some of the £20K could be put aside to 
encourage more areas to get a green flag 
status.

The current investment was needed for the work to be 
done on the existing sites to ensure they retained the 
green flag status

23



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

Members sought clarification on who 
Metal Culture were accountable to.  Was 
the money that they were being granted 
for the benefit of arts from within the 
council directed by Vivacity or were they 
an independent body which supported 
arts and culture for the city. 

Metal Culture were independent of Vivacity and as 
part of the grant the council have a  contract with them 
for a series of outcomes for the city and are 
accountable to the council.  They were also heavily 
funded by the Arts Council and this brought in 
approximately £1.5M to the city which enabled them 
to put on cultural events.

Members commented that Metal Culture 
had done some great work by bringing 
cultural events to the city.
7.14pm Councillor Saltmarsh and Councillor Shearman left the meeting. 

The Committee noted this section of the budget and made the following recommendation to Cabinet.

RECOMMENDATION

That consideration be given to instructing Amey to start the Spring Clean prior to the budget being confirmed on 9 March at Full 
Council.  The Director of Governance to advise Councillor Sandford, in his capacity as Chair of Chairs if special urgency provision 
can be applied to allow the Spring Clean to commence prior to the budget being confirmed.

ACTION

That the Cabinet Member for Resources approaches the Environment Agency to discuss possible revenue from rod licences for 
fishing at lakes that the council may be responsible for or have an interest in.

7.      Growth and Regeneration
         Schedule G, Appendix  4 

(Pages 186 - 191)

Members were pleased to note the 
investment in Northminster car park. 
Members sought clarification as to why 
the description of safety measures 
differed from those in place at 
Queensgate car park. 

The additional security measures to the top of the 
Queensgate car park were not the most attractive 
addition to the cityscape.  The upper deck of the 
Northminster car park was not as frequently used and 
would therefore have a gated entrance to be used by 
staff only.  The next two car parking decks would have 

24



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director
a mesh fitted for safety.  The council were working 
closely with the disability forum on this project.

Housing Joint Venture.  Members sought 
reassurance with regard to the statement 
within the report on page 188 “It’s hoped 
the company could be up and running 
later this year”.

The budget needed to be confirmed first before going 
ahead with the housing joint venture.  Legal and due 
diligence  had already been completed with regard to 
the model and it was anticipated that it would 
commence during the summer / autumn period.

Members sought assurance that the 
council was still fully committed to 
meeting its affordable housing targets 
and needs.

The council remained fully committed to meeting its 
affordable housing needs and the new Housing Joint 
Venture company would assist in achieving this.

The Housing Joint Venture company would be a 
development company and could build on land owned 
by the council and land acquired by the council.

7.20pm. Councillor Elsey left the meeting 
at this point.

The Committee noted this section of the budget.

The Director of Governance announced that a 
member of the HR Team had been asked to 
representative Britain nationally in the European Court 
of Strasberg to do some research on the Working 
Time Directive.

8.       Governance
          Schedule G, Appendix 5 

(Page 192)

Members were pleased to see that 
additional resources had been proposed 
to support scrutiny.

The Committee noted this section of the budget.

25



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

No comments or questions were made 
on this section of the budget.

9.      Public Health
         Schedule G, Appendix  6  

(Page 193 - 194)

The Committee noted this section of the budget.

10.    Staff Implications
       Schedule G,  Appendix   7  

(Pages 195)

No comments or questions were made 
on this section of the budget.

The Committee noted this section of the budget.

11.    Treasury Strategy  & 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Schedule D (Pages  44 - 
81)
Capital Strategy , 
Programme & Disposal 
2016/17 – 2025/26
Schedule E (Pages 82 – 
113)
Asset Management Plan 
2014 – 2019
Schedule F (Pages 114 – 
155)

Members noted that in the list of asset 
disposals small areas of green space had 
been sold off.  Members sought 
clarification on the Cabinet policy 
regarding green space and whether they 
should be protected or sold off.

The policy on green space remained the same in that 
it should be protected where it was appropriate.  Ward 
councillors were always consulted on any green 
space that might be under consideration for disposal 
within their ward.

Members sought further clarification with 
regard to page 64, paragraph 4.9.2, A 
Joint Venture, Limited Liability 
Partnership (JV LLP) and also asked 
what “loan notes” were.

The Joint Venture, Limited Liability Partnership (JV 
LLP) was the vehicle to develop Fletton Keys.

Loan notes were I.O.U’s which were interest bearing.

26



Item Section of the Budget Questions / Comment Response from relevant Cabinet Member / 
Corporate Director

Could the capital value of the loan note 
go up or down.

The capital value of the I.O.U would only go down if 
the value of the project did not achieve its financial 
objective.  If it achieved its financial objective the 
value of the loan note would go up.

The Chairman put forward a 
recommendation that before any areas of 
green space are put up for sale there 
should be a consultation with ward 
councillors and if relevant also members 
of the public and that the contribution that 
the   green space makes to the overall 
network of green space be taken into 
consideration. 

The recommendation was put to the vote 
and approved. (14 in favour and 9 
against)

7.30pm. Councillor Serluca left the 
meeting at this point.

The Committee noted this section of the budget and made the following recommendation to Cabinet.

RECOMMENDATION

That before any areas of green space are put up for sale there should be a consultation with ward councillors and if relevant also 
members of the public and that the contribution that the green space makes to the overall network of green space be taken into 
consideration. 
11 General Comments, any overall recommendations and Conclusion

There were no further comments or questions.

27



The Chair thanked all members of the Scrutiny Committee and Commissions for 
attending the meeting and the Cabinet Members and Directors for attending and 
responding to the questions.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. INTRODUCTION OF THE  BUDGET AND OVERALL BUDGET POSITION 
INCLUDING REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER, REVENUE OUTTURN 
FORECAST AND BUDGET PROPOSALS, KEY FIGURES & CASH LIMITS AND 
COUNCIL TAX

ACTION

The Director of Governance to provide information regarding the valuation of the 
Mayors Car registration plate.

2. RESOURCES INCLUDING STRATEGIC COMMISSIONING AND PARTNERSHIPS

RECOMMENDATION

That consideration be given to instructing Amey to start the Spring Clean prior to the 
budget being confirmed on 9 March at Full Council.  The Director of Governance to 
advise Councillor Sandford, in his capacity as Chair of Chairs if special urgency 
provision can be applied to allow the Spring Clean to commence prior to the budget 
being confirmed.

ACTION

That the Cabinet Member for Resources approaches the Environment Agency to 
discuss possible revenue from rod licences for fishing at lakes that the council may 
be responsible for or have an interest in.

3. TREASURY STRATEGY  & MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY, CAPITAL 
STRATEGY , PROGRAMME & DISPOSAL 2016/17 – 2025/26, ASSET 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 2014 – 2019

RECOMMENDATION

That before any areas of green space are put up for sale there should be a 
consultation with ward councillors and if relevant also members of the public and that  
the contribution that the  green space makes to the overall network of green space  
be taken into consideration. 

CHAIRMAN                                      The meeting began at 6.00pm and ended at 7.45 pm

28



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No.  4

23 MARCH 2016 Public Report
This report contains an 
exempt Annex, not for 
publication by virtue of 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 
of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 1972

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – (01733) 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

REQUEST FOR CALL-IN OF AN EXECUTIVE DECISION:  COUNCIL OFFICE 
CONSOLIDATION – MAR16/CAB/16

1. PURPOSE

1.1

1.2

To consider a request to call-in an Executive Decision made by the Cabinet on 7 March 2016.

Exclusion of Press and Public
In accordance with Standing Orders, Members are requested to vote to exclude the press and 
public for the exempt annex which is included within the Cabinet report attached at Appendix 2 
relating to this item. This contains exempt information relating to financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding the information) as defined by Paragraph 3 
of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972. The public interest in disclosing this 
information outweighs the public interest in maintaining the exemption.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital  Scrutiny Committee considers a request to call-
in a decision taken by  Cabinet in respect of the Council Office Consolidation.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 On 7 March 2016, Cabinet made an executive decision relating to Council Office Consolidation. In 
accordance with the Constitution this decision was published on 7 March 2016

3.2 On 10 March 2016, Councillor Ed Murphy supported by Councillor Saltmarsh, Councillor Harrington 
and Councillor Ferris submitted a request to call-in this decision on the following grounds:

Criteria 4.      The decision does not follow the principles of good decision making set out in Article 11   
of the  Council’s Constitution, specifically that the decision maker did not:

(a) Realistically consider all alternatives and, where reasonably possible, consider the 
views of the public.

     (c)    Take account of all relevant matters, both in general and specific, and ignore 
any irrelevant matters.

     (d)      Act for proper purpose and in the interest of the public.

3.3 A copy of the request to call-in is attached at Appendix 1, a copy of the report considered by Cabinet is 
attached at Appendix 2 and copy of the decision notice is attached at Appendix 3.

3.4 After considering the request to call-in and all relevant advice, the Committee may either:

29



(a) not agree to the request to call-in, when the decision shall take effect immediately;
(b) refer the decision back to the decision maker for reconsideration, setting out its 

concerns; or
(c) refer the matter to full Council.

4. IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Any implications are contained within the Cabinet report at Appendix 2.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Request to Call-In Decision
Appendix 2 – Report Considered by  Cabinet
Appendix 3 -    Copy of Decision Notice – Council Office Consolidation

30



APPENDIX 1

Updated November 2014

CALL-IN REQUEST FORM AB
This form must be completed and signed by at least TWO members of any Scrutiny 
Commission or Scrutiny Committee and MUST be returned to the *Proper Officer within 3 
working days of the decision being published (not including the day of publication).  Please 
telephone the Proper Officer to make them aware that the Call-In form is on its way.

*Please note that the Proper Officer can be any of the following Senior Democratic Services Officer: 
Paulina Ford, Tel: 452508 or Democratic Services Manager, Gemma George, Tel 452268.  The Call-In 
Request will only be valid if it has been received in person by any of the above people within the 3 
working day deadline.  The form may be emailed or hand delivered.  If sent in the post you must call 
the Proper Officer to advise that it has been posted and it will need to be received by the Proper 
Officer within the 3 working day deadline.
Decision taker: Cabinet

Date of publication of decision: 7 March 2016

Title of Decision Called in : Council Office Consolidation - MAR16/CAB/16

Date Decision Called in: 10 March 2016

REASONS FOR CALL-IN Tick which reason 
applies

1. Decision contrary to the policy framework?

2. Decision contrary or not wholly consistent with the budget?

3. Decision is Key but it has not been dealt with in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 

4. Decision does not follow principles of good decision-making set out in 
Article 11 of the Council’s Constitution.

If reason 4, please tick which specific element of Article 11 the decision maker has not 
followed, did he or she not:
(a) Realistically consider all alternatives and, where reasonably 

possible, consider the views of the public.
X

(b) Understand and keep to the legal requirements regulating their 
power to make decisions

(c) Take account of all relevant matters, both in general and 
specific, and ignore any irrelevant matters.

X

(d) Act for a proper purpose and in the interests of the public. X
(e) Keep to the rules relating to local government finance.
(f) Follow procedures correctly and be fair.
(g) Make sure they are properly authorised to make the decisions.
(h) Be responsible for their decisions and be prepared to give 

reasons for them.

(i) Take appropriate professional advice from officers.

31



APPENDIX 1

Updated November 2014

Detailed Reason(s) for Call-in.  Please explain below why one of the reasons for call-in applies 
(eg. For number 1 - which major policy affected and how/why)

The decision is being called in because the business case fails to take into account the wider 
social impact of letting Bayard Place and the Town Hall to commercial services and the decision 
was based purely on finances.

We do not agree with the principle of letting Bayard Place and the non-civic core areas of the 
Town Hall for alternative commercial use where we currently have council employees and those 
of the Cambridgeshire Police Service.  The police service need to be readily accessible in the 
town centre.

Businesses, the general public and our Partners should have been fully consulted in determining 
whether we ought to let the buildings for commercial use. The Town Hall and Bayard Place have 
always been central points of access to the local authority for members of the public and the 
whole interaction with our service users will be altered.  There is also considerable cultural and 
historic importance of the two town centre facilities.

The impact of the relocation of the services also needs to be considered in how it will impact upon 
business partner, transport providers and retailers and service industries particularly in the city 
centre. To close what has been the centre of Council activities for generations and the impact that 
this may have in killing retail and hospitality activity in the town centre should have been a matter 
fully considered by all councillors in consultation with residents and all stakeholders.

Name (please print) Signature Date

1. Cllr Ed Murphy Via email 10/3/16

2. Cllr B Saltmarsh Via email 10/3/16

3. Cllr David Harrington Via email 10/3/16

4. Cllr Richard Ferris Via email 10/3/16

32



 
CABINET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

7 MARCH 2016 PUBLIC REPORT 
This report contains an exempt 
Annex, not for publication, by virtue 
of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of 
Part 1 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: David Seaton, Cabinet Member for Resources 

Contact Officer(s): John Harrison, Corporate Director: Resources Tel. 01733 452520 

 
COUNCIL OFFICE CONSOLIDATION 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Corporate Director: Resources Deadline date : N/A 

 

1. That Cabinet approve the Office Consolidation outline business case, confirming the move to 
Fletton Quays and retention of the civic core to ensure that the Town Hall continues as the heart 
of democracy in Peterborough 
 

2. To delegate to the Corporate Director: Resources authority to conclude and sign an agreement 
for lease and lease for the new office development and associated car parking on Fletton Quays 
in conjunction with the Director of Governance. 

 
3. To agree the principle of letting Bayard Place for commercial use as part of the Council's  office 

consolidation plans, and delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources in conjunction 
with Director of Governance to progress legal agreements pertaining to these at the appropriate 
time in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources under paragraph 3.4.3 of Part 3 of 
the Constitution in accordance with the terms of his portfolio at paragraphs (j) in consultation with 
the Leader if appropriate and (m) 

 
4. To agree the principle of letting the non-civic core areas of the town hall for suitable alternative 

commercial uses, and to delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources and Director of 
Governance to progress legal agreements pertaining to these at the appropriate time in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources under paragraph 3.4.3 of Part 3 of the 
Constitution in accordance with the terms of his portfolio at paragraphs (j) in consultation with the 
Leader if appropriate and (m) 

 
5. To delegate to the Corporate Director: Resources authority to agree short term extensions to the 

lease for Manor Drive to support the timing of office moves, and the subsequent termination 
following those moves in conjunction with the Director of Governance. 

 
6. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources, in consultation with Director of 

Governance, to take forward contracts and arrangements as necessary to deliver the office 
consolidation as outlined in the report, including project delivery and capital works to buildings. 

 
7. Delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources, in consultation with the Corporate 

Director: Growth and Regeneration to further develop the business case, including reviewing 
options for commercial lettings of Council buildings, developing energy efficiency business cases 
and maximising income. 

 
  

APPENDIX 2

33



 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 In February 2014, Cabinet approved a report entitled ‘Funding Peterborough’s Future 
Growth’.  This approved work to establish a new Joint Venture (JV) with the aim of securing 
regeneration of key city centre sites, and included a plan for Council office consolidation 
that would move office based functions to Fletton Quays if it was financially beneficial to do 
so.  This report provides detail for how that consolidation would work in practice, and 
explains the business case for the move being financially beneficial.   

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s approval to: 
 

a) Proceed with consolidating the Council’s back-office functions to Fletton Quays, 
authorising signing an appropriate agreement for lease and lease accordingly, and 

b) Agree the principles of subsequently letting Bayard Place and the non-civic parts of the 
Town Hall (which will remain in Council ownership) for commercial use 

c) Associated decisions to deliver the project 
 

2.2 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.6 ‘to lead the 
delivery of Business Transformation within the Council’ and 3.2.7 ‘To be responsible for the 
Council’s overall budget and determine action required to ensure that the overall budget 
remains within the total cash limit’. 

 
2.3 There is an exempt annex attached to this report that is NOT FOR PUBLICATION by 

reason of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 
because it contains information that is part of a current confidential commercial negotiation, 
and also information for which disclosure would potentially prejudice the Council’s 
commercial interests in future commercial negotiations on future lettings it undertakes.  The 
public interest test has been applied to the information contained within this exempt annex 
and it is considered that the need to retain the information as exempt outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing it. 

 
3. TIMESCALE 
 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

 

 
4. THE COUNCIL’S OFFICE CONSOLIDATION 
 
4.1 The Journey to Date  
 
4.1.1 In February 2014, Cabinet approved a report ‘Funding Peterborough’s Future Growth’, 

which set out a bold and ambitious approach for regenerating parts of the city centre and 
attracting new inward investment.  It included a description of a project pipeline for a new 
development company, including the potential for new offices for the Council’s office 
functions to be located at Fletton Quays.  This report was subsequently taken to and 
discussed at Full Council in March 2014, with Council approving the elements of the 
decision reserved for it.   

 
4.1.2 Work leading on from this approval led to a Cabinet Member Decision Notice (CMDN) in 

December 2014 (‘Progressing Funding for Peterborough's Future Growth’) that provided 
additional detail for how the development company would work, reconfirmed the sites the 
Council would sell to the company, and reiterated the Council’s intentions to move its back 
office functions to Fletton Quays, subject to an appropriate financial case.  The approval of 
this CMDN led to the signing of the legal agreements to create the Peterborough 
Investment Partnership on the 24th of December 2014. 

 

34



4.1.3 The Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP (PIP), a 50/50 joint venture between the 
Council and a subsidiary of the Lucent Strategic Land Fund, was formally created as a 
company in early January 2015 and focused in its first year of operation on bringing 
forward a scheme for the comprehensive regeneration of Fletton Quays.  

 
4.1.4 The regeneration of Fletton Quays has been a long-term ambition for the city, and formed a 

key part of the Council’s City Centre Development Plan Document, approved in December 
2013.  It has been a problematic site, with a history of complex land assembly, a variety of 
technical challenges to overcome and derelict heritage buildings requiring restoration that 
together make regeneration difficult.  An important part of facilitating the site’s delivery 
would be having an anchor tenant commit to taking part of the site; this would help provide 
confidence in the site for both developers and other future tenants alike.  That the Council 
was reviewing its office accommodation to ensure it was fit-for-purpose for the future 
offered the opportunity for the Council to take office space on Fletton Quays, if it came 
forward as part of regeneration proposals, and to serve in that role as anchor tenant.   

 
4.1.5 The Fletton Quays site was transferred to PIP in 2015, and – following extensive 

commercial appraisal work and public consultation – an outline planning application was 
submitted to the Council as Local Planning Authority by PIP at the end of September 2015. 
This was approved unanimously by the Council’s Planning Committee on the 8th of 
December.   

 
4.1.6 The Fletton Quays approved scheme includes plans for a new quality hotel of up to 160 

bedrooms, 280 apartments overlooking the embankment and Cathedral, a mix of retail and 
leisure uses along the river frontage, two new office developments totalling 166,000 square 
feet and new multi-storey and surface car parks.  The scheme was designed to protect 
Cathedral views and bring back into use the two Grade II Listed railway sheds on the site 
that have been derelict and unused for many years. 

 
4.1.7 The development will also see the reuse of the mural from the front elevation of the former 

Bridge House building, with it being professionally restored and then relocated to a new 
home in a prominent location in the heart of the scheme.  The mural was designed by 
sculptor Arthur J J Ayres and when it was erected in 1956 it was believed to be (at 50 feet 
by 20 feet) the largest bas-relief in England at the time. 

 
4.2 Office Consolidation in Context 
 
4.2.1 The decision the Council made to take forward its office consolidation project was based 

on the need to regenerate Fletton Quays as well as a recognition that changes to the 
Council over the last decade (through significant reductions in funding, the move to a 
commissioning council model, and through new ways of working) demanded a review of 
the Council’s accommodation needs. The Council’s office portfolio has not kept pace with 
the needs of the Council.    

 
4.2.2 Many of the benefits within the Council’s new and innovative customer experience 

programme rely on flexible and agile working approaches that are incompatible with the 
way our existing major offices operate, being split across multiple sites and having dated 
layouts that are difficult and costly to change. 

 
4.3 What Office Consolidation Means 
 
4.3.1 It is important to be clear that the practical scope of what would change remains the same 

as discussed in the previous Cabinet and Cabinet Member reports mentioned above. In 
brief, this will involve: 

 
a. Consolidation of office functions from Bayard Place, the Town Hall and Manor Drive 

into a new, single location on Fletton Quays, helping secure not only fit-for-purpose, 
modern accommodation, but also the delivery of a key and long-delayed 
development site in the city centre 

35



b. The Town Hall remaining in the Council’s ownership and with the civic core retained 
to ensure that the Town Hall continues as the heart of democracy in Peterborough 

c. The vacated areas of the Town Hall being used for commercial purposes, providing 
an income to the Council 

d. The retention of Bayard Place within the Council’s ownership, with plans to 
refurbish and re-let the space 

e. The relocation of the customer access centre to the Town Hall 
f. Utilising the existing ‘Game’ and ‘Art in the Heart’ units along Bridge Street to 

provide a necessary new entrance to the refurbished accommodation in the Town 
Hall’s southern wing, as a technical appraisal of the units have identified those 
shops as the best location for this 

 
4.3.2 It is expected that the civic core retained for Council use will include: 
 

 The Council Chamber 

 The Reception Room 

 The Mayors Parlour and office 

 The Member’s Lounge 

 The main meeting rooms (Forli, Bourges, Viersen and Vinnitsa) 

 The Group Rooms 

 The office space occupied by democratic services 

 The space associated with the Chief Executive and the Leader and Deputy Leader 

 The office space occupied by the Elections team 
 
4.3.3 One thing that office consolidation does mean is flexibility for the future.  Property choices 

are inherently long-term yet it is increasingly challenging to assess what the shape the 
Council will be and the range of functions it will provide into that long-term future.  It is only 
necessary to compare the Council now to ten years ago to appreciate just what can 
change and how problematic predicting that could be.   

 
4.3.4 With this in mind – and integrated with supporting the customer experience agenda – 

building in as much flexibility for the future as possible was core to the consolidation 
approach.  A modern office will provide not only a much more suitable environment for an 
agile working Council today, but the flexibility to adapt to future changes far more easily 
and efficiently than our existing, constrained portfolio allows. 

 
4.4 The Business Case for Consolidation 
 
4.4.1 Quite apart from the aspects of Council strategy that are supported and underpinned by 

office consolidation, it has always been the situation that the case for office consolidation 
would need to be financially beneficial for the Council and the city over the long term.  
Extensive work has been carried out by finance and property officers to assess the 
overarching business case, and assumptions and assessments from this have been 
verified and validated.  

 
4.4.2 As well as benefits to the city, the development of Fletton Quays and the move to new 

offices there will provide a number of direct financial benefits to the Council. These include: 
• Business Rates 
• Rental income from the Town Hall / Bayard Place 
• Running costs from Town Hall /Bayard Place freed up (small elements will remain) 
• Rental costs at Manor Drive cease 
• Reduced maintenance costs from the Town Hall / Bayard Place (as tenants will pick 

up an element of these) 
• Car park income from new Fletton Quays car parks 
• Proceeds from sale of site (with the post-planning uplift) 

 
4.4.3 Council tax will also be raised from the 280 apartments that will be built on the site (likely to 

be in excess of £250k per annum). As this housing growth has effectively already been built 

36



into MTFS assumptions as part of general housing growth, it is not included again in this 
business case. The project in effect de-risks the MTFS growth assumption in those years. 

 
4.4.4 In turn, the Council will have a number of costs to cover arising from the move. These  

include the following: 
• On Fletton Quays – Offices and car parks (rental, rates and running costs) 
• Capital investment: 

• Fletton Quays fit-out 
• Town Hall adaptations (ready for letting, plus civic areas refurbishment. The 

latter will enable the Council to tackle potential joint access issues, ensure 
meeting rooms are flexible and ensure the space for the democratic 
functions is fit for future use and public access) 

• Bayard Place adaptations 
• Residual costs with Town Hall (mainly the civic suite) 
• Project costs arising from the move, including stamp duty 

 
4.4.5 The costs and income are combined in the business case. Further information in this can 

be seen in the supporting appendices as follows: 
 

 Appendix 1 – contains an explanation of each element and assumption in the business 
case, along with how the Council has sought external validation on the estimates within 
the business case 

 Appendix 2 -  contains a summary version of the business case 

 Appendix 3 – contains the revised spend profile against the Council’s capital budget for 
Council building spend (see para 4.4.9 below) 

 Exempt Annex 4 contains a more detailed version of the business case, including a 
breakdown of items considered to be commercially confidential 

 
4.4.6 The business case is based on a 27 year financial model (based on the next two years and 

the 25 year lease from July 2018). The assumptions in the core model are outlined in 
Appendix 1, and includes the assumption that inflation is 2% each year. In summary, the 
proposed consolidation would save the Council an estimated £7.6m over the 27 year 
period. This can be summarised as follows: 

 

 £m 

Total 27 year income/savings from 
proposed consolidation 

121.3 

Total 27 year costs from proposed 
consolidation 

113.7 

Net 27 year savings 7.6 

 
 

Whilst the model indicates potential net costs in the last few years of the 27 year model, 
this is mainly due to the inflation assumptions of how costs increase over that period. It 
should also be noted that if inflation runs at 2% for 27 years (as per model assumptions), 
then the Council has a financial pressure if it stayed in the existing office accommodation 
as the MTFS assumes a lower increase for accommodation costs. This pressure would be 
significantly larger than the potential additional costs at that stage 

 
4.4.7 The Council has undertaken some sensitivity analysis with differing levels of inflation. 

Assuming inflation runs at 4% each year for the next 27 years, then the Council would face 
net costs over the 27 years if it moved to Fletton Quays. However, these costs would be 
lower than the pressure faced if it stayed in the existing office accommodation (for the 
reasons outlined in para 4.4.6 above). 

 
4.4.8 Paragraph 4.4.5 above outlined the need for capital investment in both the new site and 

existing sites. The current capital programme includes budgets for such expenditure in 
council buildings. In summary the revised profile of spend will be as follows: 

 

37



 Current 10 year MTFS budget is £25.308m 

 A revised profile of net spend across council buildings (including a 25 year 
profile for Fletton Quays, Bayard Place and Town hall) is £23.209m. This 
assumes a level of payment from tenants through the service charge 

 
The savings are factored into the business case. A full profile of proposed capital spend is 
included in Appendix 3. The Council will need to set capital budgets for council buildings 
other than Fletton Quays, Bayard Place and Town hall from 2026/27, but this will be part of 
the annual process of rolling forward the MTFS. 

 
4.4.9 The business case included the current forecast of the Council’s share of proceeds from 

the site. A key element of the JV partnership is that the Council benefits from the uplift in 
site value from planning permission being achieved. The changes to the Council’s MRP 
policy that will be considered at Council as part of the budget on March 9th would enable all 
this benefit to be treated as revenue income. The business case assumes this is in place. If 
this is not the case, then a proportion of the business case benefit will need to be treated 
as capital income. 

 
4.4.10 With regards to assumptions on income, the Council has taken advice on the nature of the 

market for the commercial space, providing it with confidence that it will be able to let it at a 
commercial rent.  The Council is already in advanced discussions with a party that could 
take a long-term tenancy of about half of the space in the Town Hall that will become 
available, and would look to conclude these relatively swiftly if this report’s 
recommendations are approved.   

 
4.4.11 It is important to stress that, whilst expert validation has been made of assumptions that 

market analysis underpinning this income to provide reassurance of its reasonableness, 
the time lag between now and when the Council would move means securing tenants for 
everything upfront is impractical; therefore, this income is predicted based on commercial 
demands and early discussion with potential tenants.  Likewise, predicting costs over such 
a long period is challenging: expert validation provides reassurance that the estimates are 
reasonable and assumptions robust, but Cabinet should be aware that fluctuations (up or 
down) are possible.  

 
4.4.12 The overall position is nonetheless predicted to be a positive one: that is, it is financially 

beneficial for the Council to complete the office consolidation it has planned. Furthermore, 
the project is critical to unlocking the regeneration potential of Fletton Quays. The PIP has 
significant commercial interest in all elements of the site but this is predicated on the 
Council using its covenant to act as the anchor tenant and stimulus to regeneration. 
Without this there is a very serious risk that commercial interest – and the site’s wider 
regeneration – will fall away.  

 
4.4.13 The business case does not remain static following Cabinet approval. Officers will continue 

refresh the business case as assumptions become firm, and to look for ways to further 
reduce cost and increase income, improving the savings position further. Examples of this 
would include: 

 

 The business case assumes that the vacated space in the Town Hall and Bayard 
Place is let as office accommodation. The council will continue to look at all options 
to maximise commercial income 

 The running costs of the new offices will benefit from the much improved energy 
efficiency achieved in new buildings and for the new build Energy Performance 
Certificate will achieve a rating of B, which is a significant improvement on both the 
Town Hall & Bayard Place. The overall development is being designed to achieve a 
BREEAM Rating (the industry standard for sustainable buildings) of Very Good. The 
Council will, however, use its energy performance contract with Honeywell to see if 
further energy efficiency measures could be implemented. It will also look to 
implement energy efficiency measures in Town Hall and Bayard Place, something 
that has not been possible whilst the future uses of those buildings was uncertain. 

38



 Reviewing the reception room and areas to see if more income could be generated 
by developing these facilities 

 
4.4.14 In light of this, it is recommended that the financial position is not built into the 2016/17 

MTFS to be considered by Council on 9th March (and indeed papers for the meeting will 
already have been released by the time Cabinet meet to consider this report). Rather it can 
be included in the 2017/18 MTFS. 

 
4.5 What Would Happen Next 
 
4.5.1 Should Cabinet approve the recommendations of this report, negotiations to secure a long-

term lease on a new office on Fletton Quays will be progressed, and this will begin the 
process of planning for the changes highlighted in 4.3.1.  For example, once we have 
signed an Agreement for Lease for the new offices, the Council would be in a position to 
advance the letting Bayard Place and the non-civic areas of the Town Hall in order to 
secure the associated income streams.   

 
4.5.2 In broad terms, the principle timeline going forward would be: 
 

 Finalise the Agreement for Lease and Lease, and sign: March 2016 

 Progress letting opportunities for Bayard Place and non-civic core parts of the Town 
Hall: April 2016 

 Occupancy of new offices: July 2018 
 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 Consultation has been undertaken with senior offices (including representatives from legal, 
finance and property services) as well as key Members, including the Cabinet Member for 
Resources.   

 
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

6.1 The Council will conclude negotiations on an Agreement for Lease and Lease for offices on 
Fletton Quays, taking occupation of those offices in mid-2018. 

 
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7.1 The Council, in the previous decisions mentioned earlier, has made its intention to 
consolidate back office functions to Fletton Quays clear, subject to the financial case being 
beneficial to the Council and the city.  Taking this forward helps facilitate a landmark 
regeneration site, provides the Council with much-need flexibility in its office portfolio, 
aligns to its current programmes for flexible working, and is financially beneficial over the 
long-term.  

 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1 Do Nothing 
 
8.1.1 The Council’s existing office estate is poorly suited to its current needs, something that is 

unlikely to improve as those needs evolve further over the short and medium term.  
Financially, the costs of operation and maintenance of these buildings would continue to 
rest with the Council, costs that are predicted to be substantial over the coming twenty-five 
years.  Coupled with the facilitation of the Council’s long-term goal of regenerating Fletton 
Quays, these reasons make a compelling case for office consolidation, and so the option of 
doing nothing was rejected. 

 
8.2 Consolidate Somewhere Other Than Fletton Quays 
 
8.2.1 The Council has made its intention to consolidate to Fletton Quays clear in previous 

decisions and statements.  Moving to a new office on that site is critical for ensuring the 

39



comprehensive regeneration of a landmark and all-too-long derelict city centre site, a 
regeneration highly unlikely to happen without the Council as a key anchor-tenant.  This is 
because the work required to bring the Grade II Listed Engine Shed back into use is 
substantial, and a long-term pre-let provides the commercial confidence to make that 
commitment.  Whilst other parts of the site could come forward without the Council’s 
involvement, it would risk being a piecemeal and non-planning compliant regeneration, with 
the rear of the site likely to languish untouched. 

 
8.2.2 Even were the Council to set this compelling commitment aside, there is a practical issue in 

that there is limited office space of the scale the Council needs – in the order of 90,000 
square feet – available or likely to become available in the city, and especially in the city 
centre.  Consolidating back-office functions in one location aligns with the Council’s wider 
agenda on Customer Experience and flexible working, and requires modern, adaptable 
office space to be successful.    

 
8.2.3 Taking the lease on a new office that is being built as part of the Fletton Quays 

development provides the right office, in the right location, at the right time.  This alternative 
was therefore rejected.   

 
9. IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1 Financial Implications 
 
9.1.1 This report outlines the financial implications of the office consolidation and the proposed 

move to Fletton Quays. The business case is specifically covered in section 4.4 of this 
report (plus supporting appendices). 

 
9.2 Legal Implications 
 
9.2.1 s1 Localism Act 2011 provides that a Local Authority has power to do anything that 

individuals generally may do. 
 
9.2.2 To secure the office accommodation that the Council intends to lease at Fletton Quays, the 

Council will need to agree and sign an agreement for lease. By signing an agreement for 
lease the land owner will be contractually bound to grant a lease for the office 
accommodation once the offices have been built. The Council will agree the form of lease 
as part of the negotiations for the agreement for lease so will know the terms from the date 
the agreement for lease is signed. 

 
9.2.3 It is standard commercial practice to enter into an agreement for lease in circumstances 

such as this as it allows the tenant to secure premises before they are available. The 
alternative would be to wait until the office accommodation was built and at that point enter 
into lease negotiations. This approach would inevitably cause a delay in the lease being 
completed and more importantly the land owner would be under no obligation to grant the 
lease to the Council at that time, and could instead grant a lease to a third party. This 
uncertainty would limit the Council’s ability to make arrangements for its existing office 
space as there would be no certainty that the new office accommodation would be 
available  

 
9.2.4 It is important for Cabinet to be clear that by entering into an agreement for lease the 

Council will be obliged to enter into a lease of the office space when it is built making a 
legal commitment for the long-term.  

 
9.3 Property Implications 
 
9.3.1 There are clear property implications from these decisions.  The Council will be changing 

how it houses its office functions substantially, moving its front of house service centre to 
the Town Hall, and putting into alternative (revenue-generating) uses Bayard Place and 
parts of the Town Hall.  It will need to move staff from Manor Drive, Bayard Place and the 

40



Town Hall to a new office, and it will need to progress alternative uses for vacated space to 
secure commercial interest the Council is aware of.   

 
9.3.2 It is important to be clear that the Council has taken extensive advice on the arrangements 

proposed in this report, including external validation and assessment of key aspects of the 
commercials in the business case and the underlying assumptions.  This advice includes 
assessment of the future demand for space the Council will be looking to refurbish and let, 
and the likely rates that will be achievable.   

 
9.3.3 For the avoidance of doubt, the Council will retain ownership of both Bayard Place and the 

Town Hall as a whole, providing the Council with long-term assets in the city centre and 
control of what might happen on these sites into the future. 

 
9.3.4 The proposals will also see a reduction of two commercial units in Bridge Street. The 

income reduction to the Council is factored into the business case. 
 
9.4 Environment Capital implications 
 
9.4.1 The running costs of the new offices will benefit from the much improved energy efficiency 

achieved in new buildings and for the new build Energy Performance Certificate will 
achieve a rating of B, which is a significant improvement on both the Town Hall & Bayard 
Place. The overall development is being designed to achieve a BREEAM Rating (the 
industry standard for sustainable buildings) of Very Good. 

 
9.4.2 The Council will, however, use its energy performance contract with Honeywell to see if 

further energy efficiency measures could be implemented. It will also look to implement 
energy efficiency measures in Town Hall and Bayard Place, something that has not been 
possible whilst the future uses of those buildings was uncertain. 

 
9.4.3 The site makes extensive provision for cycling, with routes through the site. The new offices 

will also have bike spaces and there will be showers for cyclists. 
 
9.5 HR Implications 
 
9.5.1 Further to paragraphs 4.2 & 4.3 above, it is recognised that the move to Fletton Quays 

accompanied by the introduction of flexible and agile working practices will affect the 
majority of staff. Hot desking will be an important element of this approach, with many local 
authorities having typically already adopted a ratio of 7 desks for 10 staff. In the case of 
Fletton Quays this would broadly mean that 1000 desks will provide space for 1430 staff. 
Consultations will therefore take place, in accordance with the Council’s employment 
policies and procedures, having regard where necessary to policies and practices that 
have been successfully adopted by other local authorities. This process will involve staff 
and the trade unions and consolidation of staff from disparate locations will be subject to 
the appropriate consultation where this will impact on the terms and conditions of staff. 
Similar discussions will also be taking place within partner organisations where co location 
is being proposed or already in place. 

 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
  

 None. 
 
 

41



Appendix 1 – outline of business case assumptions 
 

Business Case Item Assumption Validation – plus residual issues/risk 

   

Benefits:   

Additional Business Rates retained by 
PCC from development 

The commercial properties on Fletton Quays will pay 
business rates. The Council will retain a proportion of 
this.  
The business case assumes that the council retains 
42%. This is the level prior to the Council’s pilot with 
Treasury (where extra sums are retained). 
Most commercial premises will be completed in 
2018/19, prior to the planned full localisation of 
business rates 

The likely rateable values, and business rate costs, 
for each commercial property have been estimated 
by Serco. 
 
The actual valuations will be undertaken by the 
Valuation Office Agency when they are complete and 
in use. 
 
The Council continues to lobby for a greater share of 
business rates to be retained in 2018/19, but at this 
stage a prudent view has been taken 

Income from letting of current premises The Council plans to lease space in Town Hall, and 
for the whole of Bayard place. 
 
The model currently assumes this is let as office 
space. 

BSM have reviewed the proposals and provided 
assurance on the following: 

 The rental levels assumed in the model 

 The level of demand in Peterborough for 
office space 

 
The Council will continue to review whether any 
other uses would provide better value for money for 
the Council. 
 
Whilst discussions are underway with potential 
tenants, there are no agreements in place at the time 
of writing (indeed there is no authority to do so). 
These discussions will be followed up and the 
properties will need to be marketed following Cabinet 
approval. 

Reduction in Revenue expenditure at 
current sites 

As the Council vacates space in Town Hall, Bayard 
and Manor Drive, it will free up running costs on 
those sites (as Manor Drive will be completely 
vacated all costs will cease) 

Internal property and Finance teams have reviewed 
to confirm costs are freed up. 
 
If the council is unable to let the premises, then it 
would also face continued costs on those sites. 

42



Income from Fletton Quays  The Council will receive income from the car parks 
on FQ, and from the commercial units within the 
office complex. 
Income from staff parking is already factored into the 
budget, and so is excluded from the business case 

The likely level of parking income has been reviewed 
by the internal car parking team. 
Commercial rents have been assessed by the 
property team. 

Reduction in existing Capital expenditure 
requirements on current sites 

The Council has a budget allocation for works to 
council buildings within the current 10 year MTFS 
programme. 

Schedule of capital works for 25 years for Town Hall 
and Bayard Place has been provided by Norse 
Property Services (NPS). 
 
BSM have provided assurance regarding the 
assumptions as to how much of these costs can be 
recovered from tenants. 

   

Costs:   

   

Revenue costs at Fletton Quays site This includes: 

 Rental costs for offices and car parks 

 Running costs for offices and car parks, 
including business rates 

Running costs have been reviewed by NPS. 
 
The likely rateable values, and business rate costs, 
have been estimated by Serco. 
 
The likely level of parking costs has been reviewed 
by the internal car parking team 

Costs of funding Capital expenditure for 
development at current sites 

The Council plans to lease space in Town Hall, and 
for the whole of Bayard Place. The model currently 
assumes this is let as office space. 
Works will need to be undertaken before these can 
be leased e.g. adapting the customer contact centre 
in Bayard Place. 
Costs are also included for a refurbishment of the 
civic areas. 

This has been verified by the internal property team, 
by way, in the absence of any design, reference to 
normal industry allowances for refurbishing out dated 
office accommodation 

Costs of Capital expenditure at Fletton 
Quays site (revenue impact) 

The new offices will require fit-out, including 
portioning, cabling and other requirements. 

This has been verified internally by the internal 
property team, by way, in the absence of any design, 
reference to normal industry allowances for 
refurbishing out dated office accommodation 

 
 
The business case is also based on the new office accommodation being available from July 2018. 

43



APPENDIX 2 - SUMMARY BUSINESS CASE

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Benefits:

Additional Business Rates retained by PCC from development -0.205 -0.386 -0.604 -0.616 -0.629 -0.641 -0.654 -0.667 -0.680 -0.694

Income from letting of current premises -0.056 -0.360 -0.873 -1.008 -1.008 -1.026 -1.038 -1.064 -1.071 -1.071 -1.091

Reduction in Revenue expenditure at current sites -0.037 -0.617 -1.430 -1.628 -1.645 -1.661 -1.678 -1.694 -1.711 -1.728 -1.746

Income from Fletton Quays -0.242 -0.402 -0.424 -0.432 -0.440 -0.449 -0.458 -0.467 -0.475 -0.484

Reduction in existing Capital expenditure requirements on current sites -0.049 -0.177 -0.215 -0.308 -0.384 -0.432 -0.511 -0.597 -0.681 -0.761 -0.815 -0.792

sinking fund/sale proceeds -0.408 -3.767

Total -0.457 -4.038 -1.639 -3.399 -4.048 -4.133 -4.267 -4.403 -4.552 -4.678 -4.770 -4.807

Costs:

Revenue costs at Fletton Quays site 2.520 3.388 3.416 3.445 3.475 3.659 3.741 3.772 3.804 3.836

Costs of funding Capital expenditure for development at current sites 0.057 0.203 0.204 0.206 0.208 0.209 0.211 0.212 0.214 0.216 0.218 0.219

Costs of Capital expenditure at Fletton Quays site (revenue impact) 0.034 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119

project costs, stamp duty etc 0.400 0.400 0.163

Total 0.457 0.637 3.007 3.713 3.743 3.774 3.805 3.990 4.074 4.107 4.140 4.175

Net benefit of proposal 0.000 -3.401 1.368 0.315 -0.305 -0.359 -0.462 -0.413 -0.478 -0.571 -0.630 -0.632

Cumulative position 0.000 -3.400 -2.032 -1.718 -2.023 -2.382 -2.844 -3.257 -3.735 -4.305 -4.935 -5.568

44



2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2031/32 2032/33 2033/34 2034/35 2035/36 2036/37 2037/38 2038/39 2039/40 2040/41 2041/42 2042/43 TOTAL

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

-0.708 -0.722 -0.736 -0.751 -0.766 -0.782 -0.797 -0.813 -0.829 -0.846 -0.863 -0.880 -0.898 -0.916 -0.934 -18.017

-1.104 -1.132 -1.139 -1.139 -1.161 -1.175 -1.204 -1.212 -1.212 -1.235 -1.251 -1.282 -1.290 -1.290 -1.316 -27.810

-1.763 -1.781 -1.799 -1.817 -1.835 -1.853 -1.872 -1.890 -1.909 -1.928 -1.948 -1.967 -1.987 -2.007 -2.027 -43.958

-0.494 -0.504 -0.514 -0.523 -0.533 -0.544 -0.555 -0.565 -0.576 -0.587 -0.599 -0.611 -0.622 -0.634 -0.646 -12.780

-0.769 -0.750 -0.727 -0.697 -0.665 -0.650 -0.639 -0.622 -0.589 -0.543 -0.510 -0.484 -0.463 -0.451 -0.267 -14.550

-4.175

-4.839 -4.889 -4.915 -4.928 -4.960 -5.004 -5.067 -5.102 -5.115 -5.140 -5.171 -5.224 -5.259 -5.297 -5.190 -121.291

4.040 4.130 4.165 4.200 4.236 4.460 4.560 4.598 4.637 4.677 4.924 5.035 5.077 5.120 5.163 104.078

0.221 0.223 0.225 0.227 0.229 0.231 0.233 0.235 0.237 0.239 0.242 0.244 0.246 0.249 5.660

0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.119 0.118 0.118 0.118 0.118 0.118 0.118 0.118 0.118 3.001

0.963

4.380 4.472 4.508 4.546 4.583 4.810 4.912 4.952 4.993 5.034 5.284 5.397 5.441 5.486 5.281 113.702

-0.459 -0.417 -0.407 -0.382 -0.377 -0.194 -0.155 -0.151 -0.123 -0.106 0.113 0.173 0.182 0.189 0.092 -7.589

-6.027 -6.444 -6.851 -7.233 -7.609 -7.803 -7.959 -8.109 -8.232 -8.337 -8.224 -8.051 -7.870 -7.680 -7.58945



APPENDIX 3 - REVISED CAPITAL PROFILE

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Current capital budget 'Other council building spend' 4.550 1.580 2.805 2.480 1.580 2.321 2.498 2.498 2.498 2.498 0.000 0.000

Proposed amendments -2.895 -0.275 -1.555 -1.540 -0.615 -1.299 -1.440 -1.445 -1.328 -1.398 0.346 0.423

Revised Capital budget for all PCC Buildings 1.655 1.305 1.250 0.940 0.965 1.022 1.058 1.053 1.170 1.100 0.346 0.423

Capital budget for PCC Buildings exc. TH & BP 1.655 1.210 1.153 0.841 0.841 0.664 0.841 0.841 0.841 0.841 0.000 0.000

Revised Capital spend for Office Accomodation 5.342              0.095          0.097              0.099              0.124           0.358              0.217              0.212              0.329              0.259              0.346              0.423              

Total requirement 6.997              1.305          1.250              0.940              0.965           1.022              1.058              1.053              1.170              1.100              0.346              0.423              

Proposed additional capital TH Civic 0.500              

Proposed additional capital TH North 1.342              

Proposed additional capital TH South 1.250              

Proposed additional capital BP 0.250              

Proposed additional capital FQ 2.000              

5.342              

46



2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2031/32 2032/33 2033/34 2034/35 2035/36 2036/37 2037/38 2038/39 2039/40 2040/41 2041/42 2042/43 TOTAL

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -                 25.308

0.294 0.355 0.447 0.629 0.300 0.152 0.230 0.436 0.822 0.600 0.423 0.445 0.149 0.299 -                 -7.441 

0.294 0.355 0.447 0.629 0.300 0.152 0.230 0.436 0.822 0.600 0.423 0.445 0.149 0.299 -                 17.867

0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 -                 9.728

0.294              0.355              0.447              0.629              0.300              0.152              0.230              0.436              0.822              0.600              0.423              0.445              0.149              0.299              -                 13.481        

0.294              0.355              0.447              0.629              0.300              0.152              0.230              0.436              0.822              0.600              0.423              0.445              0.149              0.299              -                 23.209        

47



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 

1972. 

 

Document is Restricted 

48



APPENDIX 3

Decision details

Council Office Consolidation - MAR16/CAB/16

 Find out more about this issue

Decision Maker: Cabinet

Decision status: Called - in

Is Key decision?: Yes

Is subject to call in?: Yes

Purpose:

Cabinet received a report, the purpose of which was to seek approval:

 

a)    To proceed with consolidating the Council’s back-office functions to Fletton Quays, 

authorising signing an appropriate agreement for lease and lease accordingly;

b)    To agree the principles of subsequently letting Bayard Place and the non-civic parts of 

the Town Hall (which would remain in Council ownership) for commercial use; and

c)    To agree associated decisions to deliver the project.
 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED:
 

1.    To approve the Office Consolidation outline business case, confirming the move to Fletton 

Quays and retention of the civic core to ensure that the Town Hall continued as the heart of 

democracy in Peterborough.

 

2.    To delegate to the Corporate Director: Resources authority to conclude and sign an agreement 

for lease and lease for the new office development and associated car parking on Fletton 

Quays in conjunction with the Director of Governance.

 

3.    To agree the principle of letting Bayard Place for commercial use as part of the Council's office 

consolidation plans, and to delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources in 

conjunction with Director of Governance to progress legal agreements pertaining to these at the 

appropriate time in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources under paragraph 3.4.3 

of Part 3 of the Constitution in accordance with the terms of his portfolio at paragraphs (j) in 

consultation with the Leader if appropriate and (m).

49

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=17392&Opt=0


APPENDIX 3

 

4.    To agree the principle of letting the non-civic core areas of the town hall for suitable alternative 

commercial uses, and to delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources and Director 

of Governance to progress legal agreements pertaining to these at the appropriate time in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Resources under paragraph 3.4.3 of Part 3 of the 

Constitution in accordance with the terms of his portfolio at paragraphs (j) in consultation with 

the Leader if appropriate and (m).

 

5.    To delegate to the Corporate Director: Resources authority to agree short term extensions to 

the lease for Manor Drive to support the timing of office moves, and the subsequent termination 

following those moves in conjunction with the Director of Governance.

 

6.    To delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources, in consultation with Director of 

Governance, to take forward contracts and arrangements as necessary to deliver the office 

consolidation as outlined in the report, including project delivery and capital works to buildings.

 

7.    To delegate authority to the Corporate Director: Resources, in consultation with the Corporate 

Director: Growth and Regeneration to further develop the business case, including reviewing 

options for commercial lettings of Council buildings, developing energy efficiency business cases 

and maximising income.

Reasons for the decision:

The Council, in previous decisions, had made its intention to consolidate back office functions to 

Fletton Quays clear, subject to the financial case being beneficial to the Council and the city.  

Taking this forward would help facilitate a landmark regeneration site, provide the Council with 

much-need flexibility in its office portfolio, align to its current programmes for flexible working, and 

would be financially beneficial over the long-term.
 

Alternative options considered:

1.            Do Nothing

 
            The Council’s existing office estate was poorly suited to its current needs, 

something that was unlikely to improve as those needs evolved further over the 
short and medium term.  Financially, the costs of operation and maintenance of 

50



APPENDIX 3

these buildings would continue to rest with the Council, costs that were predicted to 
be substantial over the coming twenty-five years.  Coupled with the facilitation of 
the Council’s long-term goal of regenerating Fletton Quays, these reasons made a 
compelling case for office consolidation, and so the option of doing nothing was 
rejected.

 
2.            Consolidate Somewhere Other Than Fletton Quays

 
            The Council had made its intention to consolidate to Fletton Quays clear in 

previous decisions and statements.  Moving to a new office on that site was critical 
for ensuring the comprehensive regeneration of a landmark and all-too-long derelict 
city centre site, a regeneration highly unlikely to happen without the Council as a 
key anchor-tenant.  This was because the work required to bring the Grade II Listed 
Engine Shed back into use was substantial, and a long-term pre-let provided the 
commercial confidence to make that commitment.  Whilst other parts of the site 
could come forward without the Council’s involvement, it would risk being a 
piecemeal and non-planning compliant regeneration, with the rear of the site likely 
to languish untouched.

 
Even were the Council to set this compelling commitment aside, there was a 
practical issue in that there was limited office space of the scale the Council needed 
– in the order of 90,000 square feet – available or likely to become available in the 
city, and especially in the city centre.  Consolidating back-office functions in one 
location aligned with the Council’s wider agenda on Customer Experience and 
flexible working, and required modern, adaptable office space to be successful.  

 
Taking the lease on a new office that was being built as part of the Fletton Quays 
development provided the right office, in the right location, at the right time.  This 
alternative was therefore rejected. 

 

Interests and Nature of Interests Declared:

Councillor Holdich as Director of Peterborough Investment Partnership.
Councillor Hiller as Director of Peterborough Investment Partnership.

Background Documents:

None.

Publication date: 07/03/2016

Date of decision: 07/03/2016

51



APPENDIX 3

Date comes into force if not called in: 11/03/2016

Call-in deadline date: 10/03/2016

Current call-in Count: 1

Accompanying Documents:

 It is not anticipated that there will be any documents other than the report and relevant 

appendices to be published. 

52



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 5

23 MARCH 2016 Public Report

Report of the CEO of Opportunity Peterborough
Steve Bowyer, CEO Tel. 317489Contact 

Officer Tom Hennessy, Senior Economic Development Manager Tel. 317417

OPPORUTNITY PETERBOROUGH UPDATE REPORT

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The Committee has requested an update on the remit, functions and achievements of 
Opportunity Peterborough, a private company wholly owned by Peterborough City Council..

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee endorse the activities of Opportunity Peterborough.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 The primary function of Opportunity Peterborough [‘OP’] is to drive the economic growth of the 
city. As such it is crucial to delivering a ‘bigger and better Peterborough’ by increasing economic 
activity and job opportunities, reducing unemployment and developing a sustainable and 
resilient economy for the future.

No National Indicators relate to this activity.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 As a wholly owned company of the City Council, it is important that members of the council are 
aware of the activities, remit, achievements of the company, and some of the challenges it 
faces. Founded originally as an urban regeneration company in 2005, Opportunity 
Peterborough became an economic development company in 2011. Further information on the 
role and functions of the company are included in Appendix 1.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 Proposals have been put forward to continue to fund OP’s core activities from the Council 
budget and this commitment is both welcome and gratefully received. The scale of 
achievements and expectations that have been raised on OP’s outputs mean that the amount 
of funding received needs to be greatly enhanced through additional grants and 
commercialisation. OP will always ensure that the activity to attract additional funding does not 
detract from providing the core remit expected of it by the city, but there needs to be a 
realisation of the tension and holding in balance the delivery of economic development support 
and the need to generate revenue to survive.

OP has always maintained positive relationships with its partners in the wider economic arena 
(GCGP EP, UKTI, Dept of Business Innovation & Skills). Central government initiatives and 
funding will often flow through many of these agencies and it is vital that Peterborough has an 
‘on-the-ground’ function that can provide the local intelligence and impetus for one of the UK’s 

53



fastest growing cities, and indeed the largest city in this part of the East of England, and ensure 
that flow of funding is relevant and effective.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 In simple terms, the main implications from the report are financial in terms of PCC’s 
commitment or otherwise to support OP through a funding contribution. In all other terms, OP’s 
operations comply with the necessary and appropriate governance arrangements established 
through its memorandum of articles. Perhaps more important, however, is the support that 
council members can give to OP vocally: that the economy of the city is prospering and that 
OP’s approach, encompassing investment, enterprise, business growth, skills and city profile, 
is a distinctive proposition that will underpin the continued growth of the city.

This report has no direct ward-distinctive implications, as OP’s remit is city-wide. It should be 
noted, however, that OP has been supporting the regeneration programme in the ‘CAN-Do’ 
project area to ensure economic and funding opportunities are fully explored and optimised.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 No consultation has been necessary as part of the submission of this paper which is largely for 
information.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 As a paper largely for information, no further action is anticipated.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 No background documents have been used in the preparation of this report.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1 – Opportunity Peterborough Overview Report
Appendix 2 – Economic Report October 2015 - http://www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2015/10/Peterborough-Economic-Intelligence-Report.-October-2015-
Final.pdf

54

http://www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Peterborough-Economic-Intelligence-Report.-October-2015-Final.pdf
http://www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Peterborough-Economic-Intelligence-Report.-October-2015-Final.pdf
http://www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/Peterborough-Economic-Intelligence-Report.-October-2015-Final.pdf


APPENDIX 1

OPPORTUNITY PETERBOROUGH: OVERVIEW REPORT

The following report provides an overview of the remit, achievements and challenges faced by Opportunity 
Peterborough both in the 2015/16 financial year, and looking forward. It has also incorporated areas that 
the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee had indicated that it would have a 
particular interest in. As an overview report it cannot encompass all of Opportunity Peterborough’s 
activities and achievements, but provides an insight into the breadth of its role and some of its key 
successes.

1. ROLE & REMIT

Opportunity Peterborough is a wholly owned company of the City Council. Originally established as an 
urban regeneration company [‘URC’] in 2005, it had considerable success in leading the growth and 
regeneration of the city, with the award-winning Cathedral Square project, site assembly and 
masterplanning for South Bank, and a range of innovative projects. In 2011, it became an economic 
development company with a clearer focus on economic growth and development, and with PCC as its 
sole member. As sole member, PCC provided core funding for the company’s operations, originally in the 
region of £400,000; a figure which has reduced to £130,000 in 2015/16.

There are a number of key areas in OP’s role to drive economic growth:

i. Business Growth: enabling local companies to expand and employ more people. This can be 
through low-intervention advice, sign-posting, business intelligence, business connections. 
Recently this has evolved into providing more support for start-up enterprises through the Ignite 
programme, seeing Peterborough lead the way in business start-up and survival rates.

ii. Inward Investment: encouraging existing businesses to reinvest in the city and attracting new 
companies to relocate to Peterborough. This is achieved through pro-active marketing, targeted 
approaches to business, raising the profile of the city through other measures, intelligence, and the 
provision of soft-landing support.

iii. Marketing: ensuring that the economic successes of the city are promoted to businesses, partners 
and potential investors (underpinning both the business growth and investment ambitions).

iv. Skills: through OP’s Skills Service engaging with local businesses, schools and young people. The 
Service provides independent, impartial advice, helping schools to understand what business 
needs, young people to be aware of their choices and options, and businesses to influence the 
workforce of the future. It covers everything from employability and work-readiness, to informal 
advice on apprenticeships and careers, and even basic enterprise development skills.

v. Rebalancing the Economy: OP also delivers a range of special projects that underpin all of the 
above while seeking to rebalance and diversify the economy. These include: co-ordinating the 
Water Innovation Network with Anglian Water, to encourage innovations through to the market-
place and innovating companies to succeed; delivering the LEADER programme to provide funding 
to rural businesses; and of course leading PeterboroughDNA, the city’s future cities demonstrator 
that has supported new ideas, innovations and jobs, encouraged digital connectivity and developed 
new approaches to skills and business. 

2. ACHIEVEMENTS

OP has performed consistently well in driving the economic growth of the city, creating the confidence for 
businesses to invest and grow, increasing business numbers and job creation, and setting Peterborough 
firmly on the national and international arena.

i. Support for local businesses to set up and grow:

55



The Ignite programme currently has over 200 young entrepreneurs receiving business support through 
seminars, advice and mentoring, has helped nearly 50 people (all ages) off JSA Claimant Count and into 
their own business, and placed 12 creative industry practitioners into national arts organisations.

The Bondholder network currently has over 200 members, receiving unique city intelligence, business 
connection opportunities and a bespoke website to showcase their products.

OP has made a conscious effort to engage large businesses into the agenda of the city, with significant 
connections now made with major companies in the city, who in return gain invaluable insights and 
connections to a network of academia and government agencies.

ii. Encouraging and supporting new business investment:

Directly supporting the relocation of Thomas Cook to Lynchwood and providing business intelligence and 
advice to a number of other investments by local companies.

Having transformed the city centre by attracting major investors such as Primark, TK Maxx, Nando’s, 
Wildwood, Patisserie Valerie, Carluccio’s and others, OP has turned its attention to wider city investment 
by supporting local agents and landowners with economic intelligence and advice. Lack of resource has 
precluded a more dedicated approach to this work, but steps are in hand to address this.

iii. Marketing

OP has represented the city at major conferences both nationally and internationally, raising 
Peterborough’s profile for new investment opportunities. These include events in the British Embassy in 
Brussels (and reciprocated in London), Barcelona, India and China.

iv. Skills

OP’s Skills Service has achieved tremendous success. With funding received from the Greater Cambridge 
Greater Peterborough Enterprise Partnership [GCGP EP], its geographic remit now covers the whole of 
the north LEP area (Rutland, Peterborough, Fenland, Kings Lynn & West Norfolk). Even so its 
achievements are impressive:

In 2015, over 17,000 interactions took place between young people and employers, with nearly 2,000 
businesses signed up to help inform and inspire young people, and every secondary school in the area 
engaged.

Over 2,000 young people and over 100 employers attended the Careers Festival in 2015, which not only 
hosted a Formula 1 car and high tech companies, but also a rocket scientist from NASA who was here for 
a week to inspire young people and teachers.

Enterprise games have also been rolled across the area to encourage the entrepreneurs of the future.

Over 1300 young people enjoyed safe work experience placements in 2015. 

OP has also supported the development of the business case for the University of Peterborough, and 
supported the progress of the UTC.

v. Special projects have a wide breadth, and the following are only highlights from the various schemes

Having secured £3M as part of the Future Cities Demonstrator programme: 11 local innovators have been 
supported in bringing their products to market, with 35 jobs created as a result; new skills are being 
developed, either through the weather stations now in 25 schools across the city to encourage young 
people to mine and analyse data, or through the Smart Supper programme, where over 80 school children 
have learned to develop business ideas to solve local challenges.

Through the Peterborough DNA programme, OP and the city are now involved in a range of funding bids 
that could amount to over £5m in value, and a recent proposition on the Internet of Things is one of only 

56



14 schemes nationally to form part of a portfolio of investment opportunities to be presented by UKTI in 
China.

Peterborough has been awarded an international Smart City Award 2015, as well as ‘Green Apple’ awards 
of environmental innovation under this project.

£1.3M has been secured for the LEADER programme, to support rural business growth over the next 4 
years; although only launched relatively recently, enquiries are flooding in and the first applications have 
been received.

OP also supported PCC in its CLLD bid (Communities & Locally Led Development) which has been passed 
through to Round 2, with potential funding of £1.5M.

Anglian Water has recognised significant business savings through the Water Innovation Network which 
has also provided new business opportunities.

The real achievements through this combination of activities and approaches is the boost in city confidence 
and the overall impact on Peterborough’s economy. Not only did Peterborough’s economy ride out the 
recent recession reasonably well, it has prospered over the last 5 years. Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) 
claimant count has fallen dramatically over this period: for 2015 its rate of decrease out-performed both 
the East of England and Great Britain. Private sector jobs growth has consistently featured in the top 10 
tables of the 64 largest UK cities prepared by the Centre for Cities and although average wages are not 
as many would wish, they have seen an increase over this period.

3. Challenges

The biggest challenge facing OP operationally is in ensuring a secure level of funding that can enable it to 
continue to perform at the highest level in an area where it is not always possible to generate additional 
income. However, it has always been creative and opportunistic, and will continue to explore external 
funding and additional contracts to underpin its core remit. A good example of this has been that as a 
result of refocusing support on existing business and start-up enterprise, there has not been a dedicated 
resource for inward investment. With sound financial planning, however, and the generation of new income 
leads, this is due to be addressed in early F/Y 2016/17.

Financial input and expenditure is not always necessary or the right move. With more money available, 
more things could be done: for example, aggressive marketing campaigns (posters, radio, TV etc), 
showcasing the city at specific high profile conferences (eg MIPIM). More money, would also mean the 
ability to recruit dedicated staff to directly approach potential investor companies and maintain more 
aggressive contact. The reality of public sector funding circumstances, however, means that we need to 
be smarter in optimising any opportunity to ‘sell’ the city that arises. This is currently being done through 
the effective exploitation of editorials, media engagement and PR, and being proactive with investors when 
the opportunity arises. 

Uncertainty and perception can also be challenges: with the creation of local enterprise partnerships some 
4 years ago, there was a perception that these would compete with or negate the need for OP. The reality 
is that LEPs operate at a crucially important strategic level (lobbying government, securing funding and 
setting a strategic vision), while OP can deliver on the ground Peterborough’s economic ambitions and 
support its ambitious growth agenda.

4. Performance

OP has a range of primary objectives for the city, and the following section illustrates performance against 
targets.

City Objectives

CO1 Attract investment to the city through both existing and new companies to increase business rate 
yields.

57



CO2 Support business growth, enterprise development and job creation by providing a first-point stop 
for businesses including initial advice, sign-posting and networking opportunities.

CO3 Rebalance the economy by supporting the development of skills, the knowledge economy, and 
innovation.

CO4 Raise the city’s profile on the local, national and international stage to build confidence and 
underpin investment opportunities.

Obj. Target Areas Annual
Target
/ KPI

2015/16 
Figures

CO1 Number of serious enquiries generated 9 11

Number of conversions directly supported by OP 3 2

Number of conversions indirectly supported by OP 9 10

CO2 Number of jobs created through direct OP engagement 50 68

Number of companies accessing support through OP 36 45

CO3 Number of business interactions with Skills Service 420 480

Patent registration (position in Centre for Cities reports) KPI 
baseline 
38th

6th

Number of KTPs (Knowledge Transfer Partnerships) active 
in city

5 8

CO4 Number of positive regional media stories covered 9 9

National / international conferences with OP speaking 5 8

5. Peterborough Economy

An economic intelligence report is included at Appendix 2.

6. Peterborough Investment Partnership

OP works very closely with PIP. It can provide invaluable market intelligence and connections to potential 
investors. It is also able to connect PIP to major strategic players: for example, through OP’s intervention 
recently, Fletton Quays was highlighted as a development opportunity in the London Stansted Cambridge 
Consortium’s material for the MIPIM development conference in Cannes.

7. Environment Capital 

OP takes a positive approach to the Environment Capital agenda both through its promotion of the agenda 
with local and new businesses, and through identifying new strategic partnerships and potential funding 
for its principles and participants. For 2 years, OP has been a partner with ARU in a ‘water efficiency’ EU 
project, looking at sharing best practise and developing the industries around water management and 
security in urban areas. This has resulted in Peterborough being identified as a regional hub for the Water 
Cluster, and the area linking with industry partners and opportunities in Peru and Nevada, US.

Many of the projects funded through the Brainwave Innovation strand of Peterborough DNA closely 
support the principles and goals of the Environment Capital agenda: ranging from the redirection from 
landfill of hessian sacks to productive new use; to solar, digital and materials technology; and social 
enterprise and local food production.

58



OP has also worked closely with PCC, in partnership to establish the Circular Peterborough agenda: 
providing support, influence, direction and connections. At its heart, this agenda will see the optimisation 
of all the city’s resources.

8. Environment Cluster 

The formal network of environmental companies, ‘Eco-Cluster’, was established by UKCeed, and although 
it continued for a short period after the demise of that company, resources have not been available to 
support its operations for some while. However, OP is working proactively with partners in the city to review 
and refresh the model and explore a more collaborative approach which would spread any resource 
implications among partners.

The low carbon goods and environmental services sector in the city appears to be in good health. Larger 
companies such as Royal Haskoning DHV, AECOM and LDA Design are both leaders in their consultancy 
marketplaces, with projects ranging from off-shore wind to the recently announced Swansea tidal basin.

9. Evening Economy

OP has been instrumental in transforming the evening economy, particularly through its hard work, 
negotiations and creativity in generating a genuine restaurant destination in the city. It has engaged with 
cinema operators and other cultural practitioners. It would like to do more in this arena, and has the skills 
base to do so, but there would be a very real risk that with its current staff complement a dilution of its 
focus could reduce its impact on the pure economic initiatives.

10. Brief SWOT Analysis

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES

 Knowledge & skills of staff
 Creative, innovative, entrepreneurial 

attitude
 Speed of delivery
 Financially responsible
 Strong reputation & connections locally, 

nationally, and internationally
 Positioned across public, private and third 

sectors
 Holistic approach to achieving economic 

growth

 Annual bidding for core funding grant leads 
to financial uncertainty

 Lack of understanding of OP role & 
achievements by partners and city

 Lack of recognition for achievements

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS

 Potential to sell services to other 
organisations and areas

 Significant funding routes to support 
transformational economic development 
initiatives

 Recognition as a thought-leader translates 
into larger scale initiatives and high profile 
partnerships

 Lack of certainty over core funding
 Salary levels of other organisations could 

attract staff to leave
 OP’s credibility undermined by lack of 

support locally
 Uncertainty over national funding picture

59



11. Scrutiny Committee Support 

OP’s future, sustainability and its consequent ability to continue to deliver the city’s successful economic 
growth agenda would be greatly enhanced by vocal support for its aims and achievements. This can come 
from any part of the city – public, private, third sectors – but it carries considerable weight if it comes across 
a single voice of support. As such, the Committee’s endorsement of OP’s approaches and/or aims, and 
its vocal support of those would be invaluable.

Additionally the Committee can offer strong insights on the local economy: its members have considerable 
understanding of the challenges and opportunities faced by their ward constituents which can provide 
greater depth to standard data and statistics.

Steve Bowyer
CEO, Opportunity Peterborough
9 March 2016

60



0 
 

 

 

 

Peterborough: Economic Intelligence Report 

October 2015 

Produced by Opportunity Peterborough  

61



1 
 

 

Foreword 

 

 

I am pleased to present this mid-year update to our comprehensive insight into Peterborough’s 

economy.  

It is always difficult, with statistics and data, to provide a definitive picture of a city’s economy, as 

sources often report on different timeframes or geographies. However, the picture for Peterborough is 

generally, and genuinely, very positive.  

We have seen job reductions in some key business sectors, but large growth in others. Employment 

remains high and JSA claimant counts continue to fall. Of course, more still needs to be done in some 

areas - for example translating the city’s spike in patent registrations into higher-end employment - but 

these issues are not turned around overnight.  

As the city’s economic development company, Opportunity Peterborough is here to support local 

businesses to help grow our economy, and this year we’re proud to be celebrating our tenth 

anniversary. The recent trajectory in Peterborough’s economy is clear, and we need to further build 

on that confidence both to tackle the outstanding challenges and to maximise the successes.  

 

 

 

 

Steve Bowyer 

CEO, Opportunity Peterborough 

October 2015 

  

62



2 
 

Table of Contents 

Foreword 1 

1. Summary 4 

1.1 Economy 4 

1.2 Skills and Innovation 4 

1.3 Population 4 

2. Economy 5 

2.1 Gross Value Add (GVA) 5 

Table 1: Workplace-based GVA (£m) 5 

Figure 1: Workplace-based GVA per head (£) 5 

2.2 Productivity 6 

2.3 Cost of doing business 6 

Table 2: Property costs (£) 6 

Figure 2: Gross weekly pay (£) 7 

2.4 Business Counts 7 

Table 3: Business counts (2014) 7 

2.5 Business Demography 8 

Figure 3:  Net enterprise creation as proportion of active enterprises 8 

2.6 Employment by industry 8 

Figure 4: Proportion of jobs by industry 8 

Figure 5: Proportion of jobs by industry (time series) 9 

2.7 Employment by Occupation 10 

Table 4: Employment by occupation 10 

2.8 Employees vs. Business Units 10 

Table 5: Proportion of employees per sector against percentage of businesses 10 

2.9 Private Sector 11 

2.10 Export 11 

Table 6: Estimate of exporting businesses (calculated using national averages) 11 

3. Skills and innovation 11 

3.1 Patents 11 

3.2 Knowledge Transfer Partnerships (KTPs) 11 

3.3 Qualification levels 12 

Table 7: Qualification levels 12 

3.4 Apprenticeships 13 

Figure 6: Proportion of working age population with Apprenticeships 13 

63



3 
 

3.5 Job related training 13 

Table 8: Job related training 13 

3.6 Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs) 14 

3.7 Further and Higher Education (FE/HE) 14 

4. Population 14 

4.1 Total Population and Retail Catchment area 14 

Table 9: Total population 14 

4.2 Projections 15 

Table 10: Population projection (000’s) 15 

4.3 Working age population 15 

Table 11: Working age population (16-64) 15 

4.4 Employment rate/economic activity 15 

Table 12: Economic activity rate 15 

4.5 Employees vs. Self-Employed 16 

Table 13: Proportion of employees and self-employed 16 

4.6 Commuter patterns 16 

4.7 Claimant count 16 

Figure 7: Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) claimant count 16 

4.8 Approximated Social Grade 17 

Table 14: Approximated Social Grade as proportion of population 16-64 17 

4.9 House Prices and House Price Index 17 

Table 15: Average house price and HPI (HPI base year - 1995) 17 

Table 16: House price to earnings ratio 17 

Table 17: Population by ethnic group 18 

 

  

64



4 
 

 1. Summary 

Peterborough is home to a diverse population of 190,461 people, 64% of which are of working age. 

The economy of Peterborough features an equally diverse mix of sectors and is made up of 5,315 

businesses which combine to produce a GVA of £4,972m a year and operate at a productivity level of 

£49,400 per worker.  

By employment, Peterborough’s largest sector is Business Administration and Support Services, with 

Professional, Scientific and Technical the largest sector by number of business units. 

With an employment rate of 80%, a gross weekly pay of £469.40, a house price to earnings ratio of 

5.25 and below average commercial property and land costs, Peterborough is an affordable place to 

live and do business. 

 

1.1 Economy 

GVA growth and productivity growth within Peterborough were subject to greater negative impact than 

national and regional rates during the economic crisis. However, longer term trends, and trends since 

the start of the economic recovery, have been greater than experienced at national and regional 

levels. 

Peterborough is a cost effective location for businesses, with property and land costs and gross 

weekly pay being below average levels, particularly given the proximity to London. This positive 

business climate is reflected in the level of net business creation which stands 25% higher than the 

UK average. 

The city has above average employment in Business Administration and Support Services; Finance 

and Insurance; Information and Communication; Retail, Wholesale and Motor Trades. It has below 

average employment in Manufacturing; Construction; Accommodation and Food Services; 

Professional, Scientific and Technical; Education; Health; and Arts, Entertainment, Recreation and 

Other Services.  

As with businesses across the UK, export and productivity are areas that provide substantial 

opportunities for growth for Peterborough businesses.  

 

1.2 Skills and Innovation 

Peterborough is an innovative city with comparatively high levels of patent registrations and a positive 

level of interactions between businesses and academic institutions. Peterborough businesses also 

invest more in the job-related training of employees than the average across the country.  

Overall levels of academic qualifications are below the national and regional averages but trends in 

the improvement of the numbers of students achieving 5 GCSEs A*-C, including English and Maths, 

and the proportion of the population with NVQ4+ qualifications are very promising. 

 

1.3 Population 

Whilst Peterborough has witnessed significant growth since the turn of the century, being ranked the 

fastest growing city in the UK 2001-2011 and the second fastest growing city in the UK 2004-2014, 

projections show that this growth is expected to slow to a steady rate of approximately 2,000 people 

per year over the coming decades.  

65



5 
 

Peterborough has a population of 190,461 with a retail catchment area population of 950,000. The 

economic activity rate of its population is above the UK national average and the number of Job 

Seekers Allowance claimants in the city has been falling at a much faster rate than national and 

regional figures although this is now falling into line with national trends.  

Peterborough is a diverse community with a higher proportion of Asian/Asian British than average with 

a high proportion of that community being of Pakistani origin. Peterborough also has a higher 

proportion of “Other White” residents than both the UK and the East, reflective of recent EU migration 

patterns.  

 2. Economy 

2.1 Gross Value Add (GVA)  
GVA measures the contribution to the economy of each individual producer, industry or sector in the United Kingdom – ONS 

Definition 

Table 1: Workplace-based GVA (£m)  

 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

UK 1,400,684 1,441,598 1,475,948 1,525,304 

East 121,346 123,075 126,296 130,378 

Peterborough 4,714 4,613 4,786 4,972 

Source: ONS, Regional Gross Value Added – Income Approach 

Peterborough had a GVA of £4,972m in 2013, the latest year for which figures are available. Growth 

in GVA in Peterborough from 2010-2013 was 5%. Across this same period GVA growth at the UK 

level stood at 9% and at 7% at the regional level. 

However, the longer and shorter term trends are more positive. Since 2000 Peterborough’s GVA has 

grown by 81%, whilst national GVA growth reached 67% and the East of England’s GVA grew by 

61%. Year-on year, from 2012-2013, GVA growth in Peterborough was 3.8% against a national rate 

of 3.3% and a regional rate of 3.2%. 

Figure 1: Workplace-based GVA per head (£)  

 

Source: ONS, Regional Gross Value Added – Income Approach 

Peterborough’s GVA per head (of population), the sub-national version of GDP per capita, was 

£26,394 in 2013, higher than both the UK and regional figures. Reflecting the overall growth in GVA 

over the period 2010-2013, Peterborough’s GVA per head has grown 2% whilst the UK and Eastern 

regions have grown 6% and 5% respectively.  

15,000

17,000

19,000

21,000

23,000

25,000

27,000

2010 2011 2012 2013

UK

East

Peterborough

66



6 
 

2.2 Productivity 
Productivity = GVA per worker. 

Peterborough’s productivity, at £49,400 per worker, places it below Eastern region and GB averages 

but does place it 20
th
 out of 64 cities in the UK (Centre for Cities 2015). The longer term trend shows 

that Peterborough’s productivity growth has outpaced that of GB and the East, with productivity 

increasing 60% since 2000. Over the same period productivity in the East has grown by 41% and by 

50% across GB. 

Both GVA growth and productivity growth have been lower than national and regional averages 

across the period 2010-2013 but stronger over the longer-term 2000-2013 period.  

GVA per head is often used as a comparative measure for the standard of living in any given area. 

The strength of this figure therefore appears to show that Peterborough has a much higher average 

standard of living than the rest of the East of England and the UK. However, a balanced view needs 

to be taken between the higher proportion of working age residents and higher job density, and the 

relatively lower gross weekly pay figures (Fig 2). 

 

2.3 Cost of doing business   

Table 2: Property costs (£) 

 

Office Space  
(£/SqFt) 

Industrial Units (£/SqFt) 

Grade A Grade B 

Big Sheds Small Sheds 

Prime Secondary 
Land 
Value 
(acre) 

Prime Secondary 
Land 
Value 
(acre) 

Peterborough 13.5 10.0 5 4 350k 6 4.50 400K 

Cambridge 34 15 - - - - - - 

Milton Keynes 21 12 6.5 5. 750k 7.75 5.50 850K 

Colchester 14 10 - - - 6.50 4.50 400K 

Brighton 23.5 16 - - - 9 7.50 900K 

Swindon  16 10 5 3.75 300K 5.75 4.25 350K 

Northampton 14.5 9.0 6.25 4.5 500K 6 4 400K 

Basingstoke 17 12 7 5 550K 8 5.5 600K 

Slough  27 17 - - - 11.5 9 1.7m 

Reading 31 23 - - - 9 7.5 800K 

Oxford 22 14.5 - - - 8 6 700K 

Stevenage 16 12 - - - 6.50 5 500K 
Source: Colliers.com (2015) 

Key: - Data not available  

The cities shown in the table above are those which fall within a 50 minute commute of London.  

Peterborough’s place in the table is positive: 

 Lowest cost Grade A office space  

 Joint Second lowest cost of Grade B office space 

 Joint lowest cost prime Big shed 

 Joint lowest cost prime small shed 

Since the last report, Peterborough’s relative position in this table has moved downwards due to the 

increase in costs in other areas of the UK. Our largest increase has been the increase in land value 

for Big Sheds which has risen by £100k although this is in line with the increase in land values in 

other areas.  

67



7 
 

Office space, particularly large office space and Grade A office space, is becoming increasingly hard 

to find, as are sizeable development opportunities. This is in part due to the impact of the current 

conversions from commercial to residential that we’re seeing in the city. However, with the 

development of a new Local Plan from the City Council, the planned development at Fletton Quays 

and the plans for North Westgate’s redevelopment we should see this situation improving in the 

coming years.  

Without this, the city could, in time, see an upwards pressure on costs although this does provide an 

impetus for further speculative development.  

Figure 2: Gross weekly pay (£)  

 

Source: Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ONS) 

In 2008, gross weekly pay, paid by businesses in Peterborough, tracked at approximately 6% below 

the GB figure. However, the years 2009/10 saw this gap closing to just below 3%, only for it to fall to 

around 7% of the GB figure in 2011. By 2014 the gap had narrowed again to below 5%. This is a 

correction that may stabilise at pre-recession levels, or this above average growth rate might 

continue, bringing Peterborough’s gross weekly pay in line with GB figures.   

 

2.4 Business Counts  

Table 3: Business counts (2014)  

Enterprises United Kingdom East Peterborough 

Micro 0-9 1,998,850 88.30% 201,660 88.86% 4,550 85.61% 

Small 10-49 218,060 9.63% 20,850 9.19% 605 11.38% 

Medium 50-249 37,655 1.66% 3,565 1.57% 125 2.35% 

Large 250+ 9,080 0.40% 865 0.38% 35 0.66% 

Total 2,263,645 - 226,940 - 5,315 - 

Source: Business Activity Size and Location (ONS) 

Peterborough has less micro-businesses and a greater proportion of small- and medium-sized 

businesses than the national average - currently 22% more. It also has 65% more large businesses 

by proportion. Generally, medium- and large-sized businesses achieve higher levels of growth than 

400.0

420.0

440.0

460.0

480.0

500.0

520.0

540.0

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Peterborough

GB

East

68



8 
 

smaller businesses. This indicates that, as the economy recovers, the Peterborough business 

community has a higher potential for economic growth than the national average. 

2.5 Business Demography 

Figure 3:  Net enterprise creation as proportion of active enterprises 

Source: Business Demography 2013 

At the height of the economic crisis, 2009-2012, new businesses struggled to start in Peterborough. 

However, as the economy started to recover, new businesses began to flourish and in 2013 net 

business creation in the city was 25% higher than the UK average. Although enterprise survival rates 

are slightly below national and regional rates, the net figures shown here reflect a positive trajectory.  

 

2.6 Employment by industry  

Figure 4: Proportion of jobs by industry 

Source: ONS business register and employment survey 

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

United Kingdom

East

Peterborough

0.0
2.0
4.0
6.0
8.0

10.0
12.0
14.0
16.0
18.0
20.0

Peterborough %

Great Britain %

East %

69



9 
 

 

Whilst Peterborough falls broadly in line with national employment trends, a couple of exceptions 

stand out. The percentage of jobs in Business Administration and Support Services and Finance and 

Insurance are above average compared to Great Britain and the East, due in part to the large 

investment in recent years by major employers in these sectors. As a major service centre in a 

predominantly rural area, Peterborough has above average employment in the Retail and Motor 

Trade sectors. The city also has above average employment in the Information and Communication 

sector. Sectors employing a below average proportion of the workforce include Manufacturing, 

Construction; Accommodation and Food Services; Professional, Scientific and Technical; Education; 

Health; and Arts, Entertainment, Recreation and Other Services.  

Figure 5: Proportion of jobs by industry (time series) 

 

Source: ONS business register and employment survey 

Looking over a five year period, an interesting view of the city’s changing employment emerges. 

The sector gaining the largest proportion of jobs is Information and Communication which has seen a 

49% growth over the five year period, with the largest loss being in manufacturing which has seen a 

22% loss in the proportion of jobs. This equates to just over 1,500 jobs lost in manufacturing in 

Peterborough since 2010, and a gain of over 2,000 in Information and Communication. 

Further trends include losses to employment in the public sector and construction, although the city is 

starting to see a rebound in construction over the past two years, bringing the level of employment 

almost back to 2011 levels.   

Whilst the make-up of employment across the city has seen changes, over 6,000 jobs have been 

created across Peterborough in the past five years; an increase of 7% which places the city slightly 

ahead of the growth in the Eastern and GB figures at 6% and 5% respectively.   

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

18.0

20.0

1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Wholesale

Construction

Information &
communication

Business administration &
support services

Professional, scientific &
technical

Public administration &
defence

Manufacturing

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

70



10 
 

2.7 Employment by Occupation  

Table 4: Employment by occupation  

% all in employment who are Peterborough United Kingdom East 

managers, directors and senior officials  8.0 10.2 10.6 

professional occupations  13.3 19.7 19.6 

associate prof & tech occupations  12.3 14.0 14.4 

administrative and secretarial  12.0 10.6 11.1 

skilled trades occupations  9.8 10.8 10.9 

caring, leisure and other service 
occupations  

10.5 9.2 9.1 

sales and customer service occupations  9.9 7.8 7.0 

process, plant and machine operatives  7.6 6.3 6.5 

elementary occupations  15.9 10.9 10.6 
Source: Annual Population Survey 

Peterborough’s workforce is still skewed more heavily towards elementary occupations than the 

national average and this difference has grown since the last economic intelligence report. 

In the ten year period 2005-2015 the occupation categories that grew the most, as a proportion of the 

overall workforce, were Elementary Occupations which grew by 48% from 10.2% to 15.1%, 

Managers, Directors and Senior Officials  which grew 34% from 6.7% to 9% and Caring, Leisure and 

Other Service Occupations, which increased by 21% from 7.5% to 9.1%, Over the same period the 

proportion of those employed in the Administrative and Secretarial category decreased by 23%, from 

14.6% to 11.2% of the overall figure, the Associate Professional and Technical category decreased by 

20%, from 14.2% to 11.4% overall. 

At the same time, national proportions for Elementary Occupations fell by 3%, Managers, Directors 

and Senior Officials rose by 6% and Caring, Leisure and Other Services increased by 18%. Similar 

trends occurred at the regional level.  

Professional and Associate Professional occupations both saw a decrease of 5% and 20% 

respectively at a local level, but a steady increase of around 17% and 6% respectively both nationally 

and regionally.  

2.8 Employees vs. Business Units  

Table 5: Proportion of employees per sector against percentage of businesses 

 
P’borough % 
of employees 

P’borough % 
of businesses 

East % of 
employees 

East % of 
businesses 

GB % of 
employees 

GB % of 
businesses 

Primary Services 
(Agriculture And 
Mining, Energy And 
Water) 

0.9 3.01 1.2 5.25 1.4 6.42 

Manufacturing  9.7 6.02 8.8 6.31 8.5 6.07 
Construction  2.4 10.25 4.8 14.37 4.4 11.76 
Wholesale And Retail, 
Including Motor 
Trades  

18.8 20.13 17.7 15.89 15.9 16.02 

Transport Storage  4.2 4.52 4.7 3.52 4.5 3.18 
Accomodation And 
Food Services 

5.6 4.99 6.3 5.04 7.0 5.87 

Information And 
Communication  

4.4 8.37 3.5 8.12 4.0 7.91 

Financial And Other 
Business Services 

27.9 29.07 22.2 29.19 21.8 30.09 

Public Admin, 
Education And Health  

22.7 7.62 26.6 6.18 28.0 6.15 

Other Services  3.5 6.02 4.2 6.14 4.6 6.52 

Source: ONS Business Register and Employment Survey, Business Activity Size and Location 

71



11 
 

Comparing the proportion of employees and businesses stock by sector reveals that businesses in 

Peterborough’s Manufacturing and Financial and Other Business Services sectors are larger than the 

national average, while the public sector is comprised of a larger number of smaller organisations.  

 

2.9 Private Sector  
Peterborough has a higher than average proportion of jobs in the private sector – 83% and this has 

continued to grow. The UK and the East of England report rates of 77.4% and 79% respectively. 

(ONS Annual Population Survey) 

Given the current national trend in public sector cuts and shrinkage of that sector, this can be seen as 

a particular strength of the city.  

 

2.10 Export  

Table 6: Estimate of exporting businesses (calculated using national averages) 

  
Enterprises 

Peterborough 
(Numbers) 

Peterborough 
(%) 

Exporters 
(Numbers) 

Micro (0 To 9) 4,545 85.5 479 

Small (10 To 49) 605 11.4 65 

Medium (50 To 249) 125 2.4 43 

Large (250+) 35 0.7 14 

Total 5,315 - 601 
Source: ONS Annual Business Survey 

There are no official figures available for the number of exporting businesses in Peterborough, and 

those that are available for Great Britain have several limiting factors: not all sectors are represented 

and businesses not VAT-registered are not counted. However, using the figures that are available and 

applying them to Peterborough, suggests that around 600 businesses in the city could be active 

exporters, although anecdotal evidence suggests that Peterborough has a below average number of 

exporting businesses. 

 

 3. Skills and innovation 

3.1 Patents  
Peterborough is ranked as the 6

th
 most innovative city in the UK based on the number of patents 

registered per 100,000 head of population (Centre for Cities 2015). During 2013 there were 6.37 

patents filed per 100,000 of population, an increase from 2.68 in 2012. 

3.2 Knowledge Transfer Partnerships (KTPs) 

As of November 2015, the KTP scheme that provided the majority of KTPs in Peterborough, Anglia 

Ruskin University’s Low Carbon KEEP, is closed. However the KTP scheme funded by Innovate UK is 

still running but with far fewer KTPs in the city – data for these are only provided at a regional level.   

By the end of the Low Carbon KEEP scheme there were 12 KTPs in Peterborough. In each of the 

projects there will be one graduate employed by a local business working alongside a university 

academic to transfer and embed new knowledge into the business, helping them to achieve strategic 

projects leading to low carbon economic growth. 

There is the potential for similar local schemes in the future and Opportunity Peterborough will be 

bringing information on them as and when they launch.  

72



12 
 

3.3 Qualification levels 

Table 7: Qualification levels 

NVQ Peterborough East United Kingdom 

% with NVQ4+ - aged 16-64 29.0 33.2 35.0 

% with NVQ3+ - aged 16-64 48.9 53.6 55.6 

% with NVQ2+ - aged 16-64 67.1 72.7 72.3 

% with NVQ1+ - aged 16-64 79.2 85.8 84.2 

% with other qualifications (NVQ) - 
aged 16-64 

8.8 5.8 6.2 

% with no qualifications (NVQ) - 
aged 16-64 

12.0 8.4 9.5 

  

Degree/A level/GCSE  

% with degree or equivalent and 
above - aged 16-64 

21.8 25.4 26.5 

% with higher education below 
degree level - aged 16-64 

7.5 8.0 8.9 

% with GCE A level or equivalent - 
aged 16-64 

22.6 23.0 23.2 

% with GCSE grades A-C or 
equivalent - aged 16-64 

22.7 25.6 22.3 

% with other qualifications (GCSE) 
- aged 16-64 

13.3 9.5 9.5 

% with no qualifications (GCSE) - 
aged 16-64 

12.2 8.4 9.7 

Source: ONS annual population survey 

 

Peterborough has a higher than average proportion of its working age population who are qualified 

below level 1 NVQ (42% higher than the UK), or with no formal qualifications at all (26% higher than 

the UK). This reflects the percentage of employees per occupation data that shows Peterborough has 

a higher proportion of its workforce engaged in unskilled and low-skilled work than in the East or 

across the UK. 

However, from 2013-2014 Peterborough rose in the rankings from 57
th
 to 37

th
 as a city, and from 144

th
 

to 126
th
 as a local authority area, for the proportion of pupils achieving 5 GCSE A*-C including English 

and Maths. The proportion of residents with NVQ4+ qualifications in the city has also risen 50% in the 

ten year period 2004-2014 whilst the East and GB proportions rose by 32% and 38% respectively 

over the same period.    

73



13 
 

3.4 Apprenticeships 

Figure 6: Proportion of working age population with Apprenticeships 

 

Source: Annual Population Survey (ONS) 

According to the latest available data (2014) Peterborough currently has a slightly lower percentage of 

its working age population with Apprenticeships than both the regional and national averages. 

Peterborough has 3.1% of working age people with apprenticeships, compared to 3.5% in the UK and 

3.4% in the East.  

However, Peterborough has been outperforming the region and the UK in this measure more often 

than not since 2009.  

 

3.5 Job related training  

Table 8: Job related training 

 Peterborough East United 
Kingdom 

% of all who received job related training in last  4 
wks - aged 16-64 

11.4 10.2 9.6 

% all who received job rel. train. in last 4 wks - NVQ 
Level 4 equivalent and above 

18.0 18.2 17.6 

% all who received job rel. train. in last 4 wks - NVQ 
Level 3 equivalent and below 

11.9 10.4 10.6 

% of all who received job related training in last  13 
wks - aged 16-64 

20.5 19.4 19 

% all who received job rel. train. in last 13 wks - NVQ 
Level 4 equivalent and above 

41.9 33.6 34.5 

% all who received job rel. train. in last 13 wks - NVQ 
Level 3 equivalent and below 

25.7 21.2 21.4 

Source: Annual Population Survey 

Peterborough’s businesses are investing in their workforce. The city performs well on this measure, 

outperforming the UK and eastern region in all but one category. 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

Peterborough

UK

East

74



14 
 

3.6 Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs) 

The 2014 estimates for 16-18 year olds in Peterborough show that 6.1% are not in education, 

employment or training. This is a decrease of 9% from 2013’s overall figures, which in turn were a 9% 

decrease from 2012 overall.  

This decrease is in line with the national figures, but is slightly behind the regional average which saw 

a 12% decrease from 2013-14. 

 

3.7 Further and Higher Education (FE/HE) 
Peterborough has two FE colleges as well as a HE offering in the form of University Centre 

Peterborough (UCP) which confers degrees awarded by Anglia Ruskin University.  

Typical courses offered by the further education colleges range from Accounting, Business and ICT to 

Construction and Engineering and Enterprise and Entrepreneurship.  

UCP offers courses ranging from Business Management and Accounting and Finance to Bioscience 

and Computing and Information Systems and much else besides. 

Peterborough also has a University Technical College opening in 2016 catering for 14-19 year olds 

focussing on engineering and the built environment.  

Peterborough is the largest city in the UK not to have its own university. It remains a priority for the 

city and discussions are underway to deliver that aspiration.  

 

 4. Population 

4.1 Total Population and Retail Catchment area 

Table 9: Total population  

 Peterborough East United Kingdom 

All People 190,461 6,018,383 64,596,752 

Males 49.85% 49.22% 49.22% 

Females 50.15% 50.78% 50.78% 
Source: ONS mid-year population estimates (2014) 

Peterborough is one of the fastest growing cities in the UK and currently has a population of 190,461. 

A larger proportion of its population is represented by younger age categories and it has a marginally 

higher proportion of males when compared to regional and national averages.  

Retail catchment area 

The population of the retail catchment area of Peterborough, the surrounding area for which it serves 

as a service centre, has grown to over 950,000. Market towns in Cambridgeshire, Norfolk, 

Lincolnshire and Rutland all look to Peterborough as their primary centre for business and leisure 

and, with the continued programme of redevelopment and expansion for the city, this growth is set to 

continue.  

 

75



15 
 

4.2 Projections  

Table 10: Population projection (000’s) 

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Peterborough              

195  

             

197  

             

200  

             

202  

             

204  

             

213  

             

221  

             

228  

England  

53,844  

 

54,228  

 

54,613  

 

55,020  

 

55,415  

         

58,431  

         

60,107  

         

61,603  

East            

5,952  

           

6,001  

           

6,051  

           

6,103  

           

6,155  

           

6,569  

           

6,801  

           

7,013  

Source: ONS Sub-national Population projections 

Peterborough’s population is predicted to grow roughly in line with national and regional trends over 

the next 20 years which would represent a slowdown in the levels of growth experienced since the 

turn of the century.  

 

4.3 Working age population 

Table 11: Working age population (16-64) 

 Peterborough 
(Numbers) 

Peterborough 
(% of total 
population) 

East 
(% of total 
population) 

United Kingdom 
(% of total 
population) 

All People Aged 
16-64 

121,254 63.66 62.04 63.53 

Source: ONS mid-year population estimates (2013) 

Peterborough has similar proportion of working age population as the national average providing a 

strong potential workforce to meet the city’s growth ambitions. 

 

4.4 Employment rate/economic activity 

Table 12: Economic activity rate 

 

economic activity rate - aged 16-
64 

% of economically inactive who 
want a job 

Peterborough 80 28.8 

United Kingdom 77.3 24.2 

East 80 24.4 

Source: Annual population survey 

A higher proportion of Peterborough’s working age population is economically active compared to 

national averages. Of those who are economically inactive, a higher proportion report to want a job 

than within the same group at the regional and national level. This shows a positive attitude in the city, 

among its population, to seek productive employment. 

 

 

76



16 
 

4.5 Employees vs. Self-Employed  

Table 13: Proportion of employees and self-employed 

 
% in employment who are 
employees - aged 16-64 

% in employment who are self-
employed - aged 16-64 

Peterborough 89.3 10.2 

United Kingdom 85.6 13.8 

East 85.7 13.9 
Source: ONS annual Population Survey 

Peterborough has a higher than average proportion of employees, rather than self-employed workers, 

compared to regional and national averages. However, this has reduced since the April report which, 

along with higher than average net business creation figures, suggests that Peterborough may be 

closing this gap. 

 

4.6 Commuter patterns  

Peterborough has a reputation as an excellent place for commuting; being situated on the A1 and A47 

and with London less than 50 minutes away by train.  

However, data from the 2011 Census reveals that Peterborough has a net influx of workers; for every 

3 that commute in to the city, only 2 commute out (figures rounded). 

The majority of workers, around two thirds, live and work in Peterborough, with the remainder 

commuting from South Kesteven, Huntingdonshire and Rutland. This is also mirrored in the outward 

flows with the addition of London as a destination.  

 

4.7 Claimant count  

Figure 7: Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) claimant count 

 

                                                                                                                          Source: NOMIS claimant count 

 

The proportion of Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) claimants in Peterborough has fallen to the lowest 

rate in the available ONS records. The percentage of claimants reduced in Q3 of 2015 in line with 

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

J
a
n
-1

3

M
a

r-
1

3

M
a

y
-1

3

J
u
l-
1

3

S
e
p
-1

3

N
o

v
-1

3

J
a
n
-1

4

M
a

r-
1

4

M
a

y
-1

4

J
u
l-
1

4

S
e
p
-1

4

N
o

v
-1

4

J
a
n
-1

5

M
a

r-
1

5

M
a

y
-1

5

J
u
l-
1

5

S
e
p
-1

5

Peterborough

Great Britain

East

77



17 
 

annual patterns. From Jan 2015 to Sept 2015 Peterborough has experienced a comparable rate of 

reduction in the proportion of JSA Claimants in the city as in the UK and Eastern region.  

The city is also now seeing the recruitment drive for 100’s of seasonal workers and it will be 

interesting to see the impact of this on the claimant figures over this period and beyond, particularly 

since historically, Peterborough experiences a proportionately higher increase in the rate of claimants 

after the period of seasonal work over Christmas.   

 

4.8 Approximated Social Grade 

Table 14: Approximated Social Grade as proportion of population 16-64 

Social Grade Peterborough East England 

AB - Higher & intermediate managerial, administrative, 
professional occupations 

17% 24% 23% 

C1 - Supervisory, clerical & junior managerial, 
administrative, professional occupations 

29% 32% 31% 

C2 - Skilled manual occupations 21% 22% 21% 

DE - Semi-skilled & unskilled manual occupations, 
Unemployed and lowest grade occupations 

33% 23% 25% 

Source: Census 2011 

The Approximated Social Grade of Peterborough’s population is weighted towards the DE category, 

reflecting the employment by occupation figures (Table 4), with only around three quarters the amount 

of the population in the AB category compared to England and the East.  

 

4.9 House Prices and House Price Index  

Table 15: Average house price and HPI (HPI base year - 1995) 

 
Peterborough East  

2015 (to date) £117,967 239.91 £203,138 327.96 

2014 £113,611 231.47 £190,375 307.15 

2013 £106,369 216.71 £175,615 283.34 

2012 £106,563 217.11 £172,245 277.90 

2011 £107,776 219.48 £171,138 276.12 

Source: Land Registry HPI 

Table 16: House price to earnings ratio 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 

England 7.01 6.69 6.86 6.72 

Peterborough  4.92 5.31 5.27 5.25 

Source: Department for communities and Local Government (Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ONS)/ HM Land registry) 

Peterborough benefits from lower than average house prices and lower HPI scores, which reflect a 

slower increase in the house prices. Despite Peterborough residents receiving lower than average 

weekly wages, Peterborough’s house price to earnings ratio still positions it as an affordable and 

attractive location for employees to live. 

 

 

 

78



18 
 

4.10 Ethnicity  

Table 17: Population by ethnic group 

 Peterborough East England 

White: Total 82.5% 90.8% 85.4% 

White: English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern 
Irish/British 

70.9% 85.3% 79.8% 

White: Irish 0.7% 1.0% 1.0% 

White: Gypsy or Irish Traveller 0.3% 0.1% 0.1% 

White: Other White 10.6% 4.5% 4.6% 

Mixed/multiple ethnic group: Total 2.7% 1.9% 2.3% 

Mixed/multiple ethnic group: White and Black 
Caribbean 

0.8% 0.6% 0.8% 

Mixed/multiple ethnic group: White and Black 
African 

0.5% 0.3% 0.3% 

Mixed/multiple ethnic group: White and Asian 0.8% 0.6% 0.6% 

Mixed/multiple ethnic group: Other Mixed 0.7% 0.5% 0.5% 

Asian/Asian British: Total 11.7% 4.8% 7.8% 

Asian/Asian British: Indian 2.5% 1.5% 2.6% 

Asian/Asian British: Pakistani 6.6% 1.1% 2.1% 

Asian/Asian British: Bangladeshi 0.1% 0.6% 0.8% 

Asian/Asian British: Chinese 0.5% 0.6% 0.7% 

Asian/Asian British: Other Asian 2.0% 1.0% 1.5% 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: Total 2.3% 2.0% 3.5% 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: African 1.4% 1.2% 1.8% 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: Caribbean 0.6% 0.6% 1.1% 

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British: Other Black 0.3% 0.2% 0.5% 

Other ethnic group: Total 0.8% 0.5% 1.0% 

Other ethnic group: Arab 0.2% 0.2% 0.4% 

Other ethnic group: Any other ethnic group 0.6% 0.3% 0.6% 

Source: Census 2011 

Peterborough has a higher proportion of Asian/Asian British than average with a high proportion of 

that community being of Pakistani origin. This is countered by a lower than average White population. 

Peterborough also has a higher proportion of “Other White” residents than both the UK and the East, 

reflective of recent EU migration patterns.  

 

Report produced by Opportunity Peterborough.  

October 2015. 

 

For all enquiries please contact: 

David Simpson 

Economic Development Officer 

+44 (0)1733 317402 

david.simpson@opportunitypeterborough.co.uk  

 @_DSimpson  

 

www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk  

79

mailto:david.simpson@opportunitypeterborough.co.uk
https://twitter.com/_DSimpson
http://www.opportunitypeterborough.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

80



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 6

23 MARCH 2016 Public Report

Report of the  Chief Executive, Greater Cambridge, Greater Peterborough 
Enterprise Partnership (GCGP)

Neil Darwin, Chief Executive, GCGP Tel. Contact 
Officer Tel. 

LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report has been requested by the Committee to provide information on the background, 
objectives and outcomes of the Local Enterprise Partnership.  The information will be presented 
in the form of a presentation which is attached at Appendix 1.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note and comment on the contents of the presentation. 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 Any background information will be provided within the presentation and through questions from 
the Committee.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 Key areas highlighted within the presentation are:
 What is LEP
 Funding
 Accountability
 Objectives
 What has been achieved
 Future direction

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Not applicable.

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

7.1 Not applicable.

8. APPENDICES

8.1 Appendix 1 – LEP Presentation

81



This page is intentionally left blank

82



APPENDIX 1

83



84



85



86



87



88



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 7

23 MARCH 2016 Public Report

Report of the Design and Implementation Group 
Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance Tel. 452361Contact 

Officer Councillor Thulbourn, Chairman of Design and 
Implementation Group Tel. 

ALTERNATIVE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

1. PURPOSE

1.1. This report updates Members on the next steps following Council’s decision on 27 January 
2016 to confirm its earlier decision to adopt a hybrid model of governance to take effect from 
the Annual Council meeting in May 2016. It agreed the type of hybrid model it would implement 
and a scrutiny structure that is aligned to the new model. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

To update Members on the outcome of the Scrutiny Workshops.

To note the actions to be taken following the Annual Council meeting in May 2016 to embed the 
hybrid model and in particular to advise Scrutiny Members of the impact of those proposals on 
their work programme. . 

To comment on the induction programme at Appendix 2. 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

N/A

4. BACKGROUND

The changes to the governance arrangements were reported to Council on 27 January 2016. 
Council agreed a hybrid model of executive decision making to take effect from the Annual 
meeting in May.   Under our hybrid model, the Leader/Cabinet system of decision making is 
retained but Scrutiny Committees select decisions they wish to review in advance of the 
decisions being considered by the Executive.  Scrutiny Committees may endorse the proposals 
or make alternative recommendations on those reports. The Executive will take into account 
any recommendations before making their final decision. The new role played by scrutiny 
allows for backbench and opposition members to take part in the formulation of policy and 
executive decision making and so provides more inclusivity for Members.

In summary, the agreed arrangements are as follows: 

1) The Chairman of the relevant Scrutiny Committees in consultation with the relevant Cabinet 
Member will call forward any executive decisions that should be taken to a scrutiny 
committee before that particular executive decision is made. 

2) On the matters selected, the executive report with recommendations will be considered by 

89



the Scrutiny Committee the week before it goes to Cabinet or to the Cabinet Member for 
decision. The Scrutiny Committee will discuss the report and make recommendations to the 
Cabinet, and in the case of Cabinet Member Decisions, to the relevant Cabinet Member. 

3) Where the Scrutiny Committee agrees with the Officer recommendations, Cabinet/Cabinet 
Member note this. Where they disagree a “reference-up” process ensures that Cabinet 
takes account of this as detailed below. 

4) To implement this model scrutiny committees had to be aligned to Member and Officer 
portfolios. Therefore, Council has established the following three Scrutiny Committees: 
These are: 

(a) Children and Education Scrutiny Committee 
(b) Adults, Communities and Health Scrutiny Committee 
(c) Growth, Environment & Resources Scrutiny Committee 

Each Scrutiny Committee will consist of 10 Members.  

5. KEY FEATURES

PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY

5.1. Under the new arrangements, pre-decision scrutiny as described above will take priority over 
post decision scrutiny. Therefore, the role of scrutiny will significantly change.   Every 4-6 
weeks before a Cabinet meeting, the forward plan will be published and the Chairman of the 
relevant Scrutiny Committee in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member will decide:

(a) matters that scrutiny would like to have early involvement in at the policy development 
stage, for example major policy documents, and 

(b) those reports coming before an individual Cabinet Member that month or before the next 
Cabinet meeting that the relevant Scrutiny Committee wishes to see before the decision is 
made. 

5.2. All Scrutiny Committees will meet the week before the Cabinet meeting.  Any individual Cabinet 
Member decisions and Cabinet reports that have been selected for pre-decision scrutiny will be 
put on the agenda of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 

5.3. To avoid any delay in decision making, it is important that these reports are the first items on 
the Scrutiny Committee agenda.  The Committee will discuss the report and the Officer 
recommendations.  The Director submitting the report, or his/her representative, and the 
relevant Cabinet Member will attend the Scrutiny Committee to answer any questions.  The 
Scrutiny Committee will then decide if it agrees with the Officer recommendations or if it wishes 
to make alternative recommendations.  The Scrutiny Committee will need to give reasons if 
they make alternative recommendations. The Officer report will then either go to the Cabinet 
Member to make the decision for Cabinet Member Decision Notices (CMDNs), or to the next 
meeting of Cabinet if the decision is to be made by the Cabinet. At that time they will also take 
account of the Scrutiny Committee’s recommendations.  

5.4. For CMDNs, if a Cabinet Member does not agree with the Scrutiny Committee 
recommendations, he or she will refer the Officer report to the Cabinet to decide.  If the matter 
is considered by Cabinet and the Cabinet do not agree with the Scrutiny Committee’s 
recommendations, they will give reasons. 

5.5. If a minority of voting members on the Scrutiny Committee do not agree with the majority’s 
views/recommendations, they may put forward alternative recommendations, known as 
minority reporting.  The minority report will be considered by the Cabinet before it makes its 
decision. For CMDNs, the matter will be referred up to the Cabinet for decision.  The Chairman 
of the Scrutiny Committee and any Members submitting a minority report will be able to speak 
in support of their views at the Cabinet meeting. 

90



5.6. Cabinet meets 10 times a year but two of these relate to the budget for which there is a 
separate consultation process.  Therefore, Scrutiny Committees will need to meet at least 8 
times a year, more frequently than they do now.  Officers and Cabinet Members will also need 
to attend the Scrutiny Committees to answer any questions.

5.7. Attached is an example timetable.  (Appendix 1)

WORK PROGRAMME AND MANAGING WORKLOAD

5.8. Councillors who attended the scrutiny workshops held in October and December recognised 
that they would need to manage their work programme differently. They wanted to provide a 
positive input into decision-making at an early stage; both at the policy development stage and 
prior to decision making.  This work would need to take priority over post decision scrutiny 
which they saw as lacking influence. However, scrutiny of external partners such as Police and 
Health remain the same, as Scrutiny Committees still have a statutory responsibility for this 
work.

The workshop agreed they would use prioritisation to manage their workload as follows:

(a) Any matters relating to pre-decision scrutiny would take priority. 

(b) Scrutiny Committees would be selective in choosing items for scrutiny for example, 
choosing two or three themes a year to inform their work programming rather than 
considering a wide range of issues.

(c) The agenda and programme should be member-led.

(d) Once the work programme is set the workshop agreed that Scrutiny Committees should 
avoid adding other items throughout the year unless absolutely necessary.

(e) Rather than monitoring a myriad of performance indicators for every function, scrutiny 
should receive performance indicators on key areas of importance and follow a dashboard/ 
traffic light system; green for on target; red for target not achieved etc. 

(f) “Items for information” should be circulated outside of committee meetings and should not 
appear on the agenda.

5.9. At the beginning of the municipal year Scrutiny Committees normally hold a planning meeting. 
The Scrutiny Workshops requested more assistance in deciding their work programme, in 
identifying priorities and in deciding their information needs to enable them to add value in a 
much more focused way. 

5.10. Following the local elections in May and after Council at its Annual meeting has appointed the 
Members to the Scrutiny Committees, an induction event will be arranged.  It is proposed that 
this is an afternoon/evening event or an all-day event.  This will include (a) a session on the 
hybrid model and how it will work in practice and (b) a work planning session.   

5.11. The work planning session will be supported by Ed Hammond, Head of Programmes (Local 
Accountability) at the Centre for Public Scrutiny who supported the workshops. It will include:

a) Corporate Directors, relevant Service Directors and relevant external bodies who will give 
an overview of their service areas, and highlight any key issues over the following municipal 
year, such as future service and legislative changes 

b) Members will identify their key themes for the following year, and discuss their working 
arrangements for the year including how they will prioritise their workload.

5.12. Ed Hammond will assist Members with their work programme, deciding their future information 
needs and how they might access them. It would be a key role of the Chairman to lead this 
work.  The proposed programme is attached (Appendix 2)

91



5.13. Members’ views are requested on the proposed work programme event, and whether this 
should be a full day event or an afternoon and evening event. 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS

5.14. Scrutiny Members at the workshop and Members of the Design and Implementation Working 
Group recognised the importance of having co-opted members on the new scrutiny committees 
to reflect additional knowledge, skills and experience which might need to deliver their work 
programme. Under the revised procedure rules, all scrutiny committees have the ability to co-
opt up to four non-voting members.  This is in addition to the statutory co-opted Members. 

5.15. At their first induction meeting, Members will want to discuss the types of experience, 
knowledge and skills they will need to implement their work programme, and to identify any 
appointments to any co-opted member positions.

RURAL MATTERS

5.16. It was decided not to have a separate rural committee. Councillors when deciding their working 
arrangements at the work planning stage will want to ensure whether rural issues are 
adequately represented and how they should be represented in the future. 

CHARTER – ROLE OF CHIAR 

5.17. The Design and Implementation Group recognised that the Chairman would have a much 
stronger role in managing the agenda, particularly in working with the relevant Cabinet Member 
on agreeing items for pre-decision scrutiny and ensuring that the Committee had a manageable 
work programme. They recommended that there should be a Chairman’s charter outlining their 
rights and responsibilities under the new hybrid model.   Members saw the role as:

(a) Providing leadership to the Committee and managing the business through setting its 
agenda and work programmes 

(b) Managing the agenda in consultation with committee members to ensure the work of the 
Committee is member led, and is in accordance with member priorities 

(c) Ensuring that its work primarily focused on pre-decision scrutiny, and adding value 

(d) Leading on the development of the work programme to ensure it is focused 

(e) Working with the relevant Cabinet Members to review the forward plan to identify key 
issues for pre-decision scrutiny both at the policy development stage or prior to decision 
making liaising with members of the committee and taking the views of Group 
Representatives as necessary

(f) When making recommendations to the executive, ensure there is consensus that 
members take account of officer advice and where the Committee do not agree with the 
officer or Cabinet Member recommendations, clear reasons are given

(g) Ensuring the Committees’ input to executive decision making is efficient and effective

(h) To represent the Committee at Cabinet meetings

(i) To foster relationships founded on mutual respect and open communications between 
Directors, the Executive and Scrutiny members

92



OTHER TRAINING MATTERS

5.18. In previous years, there has been an induction session on the role of scrutiny for new members 
and training in chairing skills for Chairman of Scrutiny Committees.  Members feedback on the 
usefulness of this training and any other training requirements would be welcome.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1. Financial Implications:  There are no direct financial costs in relation to this report. The cost of 
training will be met from the Democratic Services budget. Provision has been made in the 
budget for the additional cost of supporting this process. 

Legal Implications: There are no legal implications in relation to this report.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1. Not applicable in the context of this report

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1. CMT have set up an Officer Working Group involving cross directorate representatives to work 
with Democratic Services to ensure that processes are in place to ensure a smooth 
implementation of the new arrangements.  This will include planning the work programming 
event and induction programme.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1. None 
.
APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Calendar
Appendix 2 – Scrutiny Programming Event

93



Appendix 1 
Timetable for revised process (modelled on March 2016 Cabinet meeting)

Mon Tues Wed Thurs Friday Sat Sun

February 
8

Day 43

9

Day 42

10

Day 41 Day 40

12
Forward Plan published (for 
Cabinet in March)
(At least 28 clear (calendar) days)
Day 39

13

Day 38

14

Day 37
15

Day 36

16
Chairman of Scrutiny 
& relevant Cabinet 
Members with officers 
present to discuss 
items for pre scrutiny
Day 35

17

Day 34

18

Day 33

19

Day 32

20

Day 31

21

Day 30
22

Day 29

23

Day 28

24

Day 27

25

Day 26

26

Day 25

27

Day 24

28

Day 23
March
29

Day 22

1

Day 21

2

Day 20

3

Day 19

4
Cabinet agenda (part 1) and 
CMDNs published and included 
on the agenda of the relevant 
Scrutiny Committee
Day 18

5

Day 17

6 

Day 16
7

Day 15

8

Day 14

9

Day 13

10

Day 12

11
Statutory deadline for 
publication of Cabinet agenda 
(part 2)
Day 11

12

Day 10

13

Day 9
14
Scrutiny 
Committee 
meeting

Day 8

15
Scrutiny Committee 
meeting

Day7

16
Scrutiny Committee 
meeting

Day 6

17
Scrutiny 
Recommendations 
circulated

Day 5

18

Day 4

19

Day 3

20

Day 2
21
Cabinet
Day 1

22 23 24 25 26 27

94



Appendix 2
Induction for Scrutiny Members

Working in Peterborough’s Hybrid Model

Timing: 1 day or afternoon and evening, or two evenings

Lead: Ed Hammond, Head of Programmes, Local Accountability
Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance

Lead
Part 1 - Introduction – What is scrutiny?
What is Scrutiny?

Peterborough’s Hybrid Model

How we adapt it to the Peterborough model

Followed by Questions and Answers

Ed Hammond

Kim Sawyer

Break

Part 2  – Work programming 
Introduction to Work Programming in Scrutiny
Work Programming –The Peterborough model

Ed Hammond

Presentations
10 min presentation from each Director – Highlighting key 
Challenges, Legislation, and Major Policy Reviews 

- People and Communities
- Growth Regeneration and Resources
- Resources
- Public Health 
- Governance

Directors

Producing the Work Programme - Table work
Deciding key themes and work programme
For example -  Major Policies coming up for early review, 
Any statutory items from Partners
What type of performance reports, annual reports – list and 
do we need them, Common style performance

Members supported by 
Ed Hammond and 
Directors

Break – Lunch

Part 3 - Implementing the work programme including 
group work

- Dos and Don’ts
- Information needs, sources and how to research

Ed Hammond

Questions and Answers

Next Steps

Attendance
Scrutiny members/CMT/Partners – relevant Cabinet Members/Democratic Services Staff

95



This page is intentionally left blank

96



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 8

23 MARCH 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee 
outlining the content of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The 
Forward Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that 
the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be 
taken after 4 April 2016.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these Executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need to 
be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 

97



This page is intentionally left blank

98



PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED:  4 MARCH 2016

99



FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB
PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 clear days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below 
in Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant 
impact on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Holdich (Leader); Cllr Coles; Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader); Cllr Hiller, Cllr Lamb; Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 
388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will be 
available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Democratic Services Manager using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

100

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions


PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 4 APRIL 2016
KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Gladstone Park 
Community Centre Dual 
Use Agreement – 
KEY/04APR16/01
To formalise the 
agreement between the 
Community Centre and 
the school on the dual use 
areas.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University 
In consultation 
with Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

April 2016 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Caroline Rowan
Community Capacity 
Assistant Manager
Tel: 01733 864095
Caroline.rowan@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Award of Housing 
Related Support Grants 
2016/17 – 
KEY/04APR16/02
To approve the award of 
Housing Related Support 
Grants.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

April 2016 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Sharon Malia
Housing Programmes 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863764
Sharon.malia@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

101



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Transfer of Housing 
Needs Staff to Serco – 
KEY/29MAR16/01
To approve the transfer of 
Housing Needs Staff to 
Serco as part of the 
Council’s Customer 
Experience Front Door 
Programme. 

Councillor David 
Seaton Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources in 
consultation 
with Councillor 
Peter Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

April 2016 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraphs 1&3, information 
relating an individual and to 
the financial or business 
affairs of any particular 
person (including the 
authority holding that 
information).

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate Director 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude 
the sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park. 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
Councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic 
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

102



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

David Gray
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384531
david.gray@peterborou
gh.gov.uk
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements.

Councillor 
Wayne Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

March 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jenny Beasley
Commissioning 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452482
Jenny.beasley@peterbo
rough.ov.uk  

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste Transfer 
Station - KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for the 
build of a waste transfer 
station.

Councillor Gavin 
Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, Waste 
and Street Scene 

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Print Managed Services - 
KEY/13JUN14/01
To enable Council officers 
to be able to print, copy and 
scan.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Vicki Palazon
Financial Services 
Manager – Planning and 
Reporting
Tel: 01733 864104
Vicki.palazon@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

103



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Classroom Extension 
and Associated Works 
Heltwate School - 
KEY/06MAR15/01
To authorise the construction 
of an extension at Heltwate 
School and give authority to 
the Executive Director of 
Resources to award the 
construction contract within 
the approved budget.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure 
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Wirrina Car Park – 
KEY/06MAR15/10
Disposal of Wirrina Car 
Park to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

104



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Real Time Passenger 
Information – 
KEY/10JUL15/02
To approve the expansion 
and maintenance contract.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and External 
stakeholders.

Amy Pickstone
Senior ITS Officer
Tel: 01733 317481
Amy.pickstone@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe – 
KEY/24JUL15/01
To authorise the sale of 
Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe – (non-key)

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

David Gray
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384531
david.gray@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/02
To authorise the sale of 
the Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Gareth Dawkins
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384618
Gareth.dawkins@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

105



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of Land at Rear of 
Braybrook School, Orton 
Longueville – 
KEY/24JUL15/03
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Land.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Sale of the Lindens, 
Lincoln Road – 
KEY/24JUL15/04
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

106



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of Bretton Court, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/05
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Expansion by One Form 
of Entry to Jack Hunt 
Secondary School – 
KEY/07AUG15/02
To approve expansion by 
1 form of entry of Jack 
Hunt Secondary School to 
include award of building 
contracts for the required 
enhancement of facilities 
and any legal changes to 
the schools PFI contract. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Draft Housing Strategy – 
KEY/21SEPT15/03
For Cabinet to approve 
the Strategy for public 
consultation.

Cabinet June 2016 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Anne Keogh
Housing and Strategic 
Planning Manager
Anne.keogh1@peterbo
rough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 863815

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

107



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Passenger Transport 
Services AMEY – 
KEY/27NOV15/01
To approve the award of 
six routes to Amey under 
the existing contract 
arrangements. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

March
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Sara Thompson
Team Manager, 
Passenger Transport 
Operations
Tel: 01733 317452
Sara.thompson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

Intelligent Transport 
Systems Infrastructure – 
KEY/11DEC15/01
To introduce the use of 
Variable Message Signs 
(VMS) on the road 
network to provide real-
time driver information.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

December 
2015 to Mar 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Tebb
Network and Traffic 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453519
Peter.tebb@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

108



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Direct Payment Support 
Service – 
KEY/11DEC15/02
To approve the direct 
payment support service.

Councillor 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

June 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jenny Beasley
Commissioning 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452482
Jenny.beasley@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

Offtake Arrangements 
for Power from the 
Energy Recovery 
Facility – 
KEY/25DEC15/01 
To approve putting into 
place arrangements for 
the sale of heat and/or 
electricity from the Energy 
Recovery Facility.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, 
Waste and 
Street Scene

March
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

109



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Delegation of Authority 
under the ASB, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 to 
Registered Social 
Landlords – 
KEY/25DEC15/02
To authorise 
Peterborough City Council 
to designate authority to 
registered social landlords 
to enforce Part 4 Sections 
43-48 of the Anti-social 
Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014.

Councillor Nigel 
North
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

March
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 
including social 
landlords through 
the Peterborough 
Registered Social 
Landlord Forum

Laura Kelsey
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Co-ordinator
Tel: 01733 453563
Laura.kelsey@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Extension of 
Expenditure with 
Providers on the 
Homecare Framework – 
KEY/11JAN16/01
To authorise the extension 
of expenditure with 
providers on the 
homecare framework 
agreement, in line with 
current terms and 
conditions.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and Health

March 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jenny Beasley, 
Commissioning 
Manager,
Tel: 01733 452482
jenny.beasley@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

110



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Peterborough Highway 
Services Contract – 
KEY/11JAN16/02
To award major transport 
schemes to Skanska to 
deliver via the 
Peterborough Highways 
Services Contract.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Amy Petrie
Principal Programme 
and Project Officer
Tel: 01733 452272
Amy.petrie@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Skills Strategy - 
KEY/25JAN16/01
For Cabinet to approve 
the Skills Strategy.

Cabinet 21 March 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn
Corporate Director 
People and 
Communities
Tel: 01733 863749
Wendi.ogle-
welbourn@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Review of Emergency 
Stopping Places – 
KEY/25JAN16/02
For Cabinet to review 
existing and proposed 
emergency stopping 
places.

Cabinet June 2016 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

111



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Provision of Non Social 
Care Temporary Agency 
Workers – 
KEY/25JAN16/04
To approve the provision 
of temporary agency 
workers.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

James Fordham
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer
Tel: 01733 864581
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Commissioning of Care 
and Nursing Homes – 
KEY/25JAN16/05
For the Cabinet Member 
to consider a new 
Contract for the 
commissioning of Care 
and Nursing Homes under 
the Choice Directives LA 
circular 2004, ADASS 
Terms and Conditions.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Social Care and 
Health

March
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Helene Carr
Head of 
Commissioning Social 
Care
Tel: 01733 864013
Helene.carr@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Community Based 
Supported Living 
Service – 
KEY/08FEB16/02
To award a 1 year 
contract for the period 1 
April 2016 to 31 March 
2017 to Turning Point Ltd 
to provide the Community 
Based Supported Living 
Service.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

March 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Interim Head of 
Learning Disability 
Commissioning 
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

112



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Bus Operator 
Concessionary Fare 
Reimbursement – 
KEY/22FEB16/01
To approve the 
reimbursement to 
operators for carrying free 
bus pass holders, under 
the English National 
Concessionary Travel 
Scheme.

Councillor Nigel 
North
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

March
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Mayes
Principal Passenger 
Transport Contracts 
and Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 317451
Richard.mayes@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

Local Transport Plan 
Programme of Capital 
Works 2016/17 - 
KEY/07MAR16/01
For the Cabinet Member 
to approve the Local 
Transport Plan 
programme of capital 
works for the2016/17 
financial year.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 2016 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Amy Petrie
Principal Programme 
and Project Officer
Tel: 01733 452272
Amy.petrie@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

113



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Former West Town 
Primary Academy – 
KEY/07MAR16/02
For the Cabinet Member 
to authorise the Director of 
People and Communities 
to approve the 
refurbishment works to the 
West Town Primary site 
up to the budget sum of 
£1m. Budget to include all 
associated costs.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University in 
consultation 
with Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2016 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Emma Everitt
Capital Projects and 
Assets Officer
Tel: 01733 863660
Emma.everitt@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Section 75 Agreement 
Provision of School 
Nursing Services – 
KEY/07MAR16/03
To enter into Section 75 
agreement with the 
Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Foundation 
Trust for the provision of 
School Nursing Services.

Councillor Diane 
Lamb
Cabinet Member 
for Public Health

March 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn
Corporate Director 
People and 
Communities
Tel: 01733 863749
Wendi.ogle-
welbourn@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Provision of 
Permanency Services – 
KEY/21MAR16/01
To approve the award of 
the Provision of 
Permanency Services 
contract.

Councillor Andy 
Coles
Cabinet Member 
for Children’s 
Services

July 2016 Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lou Williams
Service Director 
Children’s Services and 
Safeguarding
Tel: 01733 864139
Lou.williams@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

114



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Council Office and 
Buildings Collection 
Contract – 
KEY/21MAR16/02
To approve the award of 
the Council office and 
buildings collection 
contract.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, 
Waste and 
Street Scene

April 2016 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant industry 
partners.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information).

Traffic Signals 
Maintenance and Supply 
Contract – 
KEY/21MAR16/03
To jointly procure a Traffic 
Signal Maintenance and 
Supply and Installation 
Contract with 
Cambridgeshire County 
Council, Central 
Bedfordshire, Bedford 
Borough, Luton and 
Peterborough City Council (5 
authorities)  through a NEC 3 
contract with a Single 
Supplier Framework with call 
off contract for 5 plus 3 
years.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

May – July 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Tebb
Network and Traffic 
Manger
Tel: 01733 453519
Peter.tebb@peterborou
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information).

115



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Increased Number of 
Connectivity/Access 
Points (CityFibre) Within 
the Managed ICT 
Contract – 
KEY/21MAR16/04
To approve the number of 
connectivity/access points 
within the ICT contract.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

March 2016 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Godfrey
Assistant Director 
Digital
Tel: 01733 317989
Richard.godfrey@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

 

116



PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Future Delivery of 
Property Services – 
KEY/22FEB16/02
To agree to enter into a 
joint venture with NPS 
Property Consultants and 
to authorise the Corporate 
Director Growth and 
Regeneration to negotiate 
the terms and conditions.

Cabinet 21 March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Duncan Blackie
Interim Assistant 
Director Property 
Services
Tel: 01733 452538
Duncan.blackie@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

Council Office 
Consolidation – 
KEY/22FEB16/04
To approve the business 
case for the Council’s 
office consolidation 
strategy and associated 
decisions relating to this.

Cabinet 7 March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Duncan Blackie
Interim Head of 
Property 
Tel: 01733 452538
Duncan.blackie@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

117



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

Potential Energy Joint 
Venture – 
KEY/07MAR16/04
For Cabinet to consider 
and approve a potential 
energy joint venture. 

Cabinet 21 March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

118



PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Smoke and Carbon 
Monoxide Alarm 
(England) Regulations 
2015 –
To authorise the level of 
penalty charge imposed 
under implementation of 
the Regulations.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jo Bezant
Senior Housing 
Enforcement Officer
Tel: 01733 863785
Jo.bezant@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

To Adopt the Highway 
Asset Management 
Policy and Strategy
To approve the adoption 
of the Highway Asset 
Management Policy and 
Strategy.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

July 2016 Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Lewis Banks, Principal 
Transport Planning 
Officer
Tel: 01733 317465 
Lewis.banks@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

119



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Empty Homes Strategy – 
To approve the Empty 
Homes Strategy.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

July 2016 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Empty Units Policy 
For Cabinet to approve 
the Empty Units Policy.

Cabinet 21 March 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Project Manager – Sale 
and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Regulatory Services: 
Shared Service Rutland 
County Council 
To approve renewal of a 
shared service agreement 
with Rutland County 
Council.

Councillor 
Nigel North
Cabinet 
Member for 
Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

March 2016 Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Officers and 
relevant portfolio 
holders at 
Peterborough 
City Council and 
Rutland County 
Council

Peter Gell
Head of Regulatory 
Services
Tel: 01733 453419
Peter.gell@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

120



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Citizens Advice Bureau
Funding –
To fund Citizens Advice
Bureau £3731 until March
2016 (via DWP grant
funding) to deliver
Personal Budgeting
Support to new UC
claimants requiring
assistance.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

March 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Funding –
To fund Vivacity £1278
until March 2016 (via
DWP grant funding) to
provide digital support for
UC claimants to make
benefit claims online at
Central Library.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

March 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

121



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Extension to Sutton 
Conservation Area – For 
the Cabinet Member to 
approve the extension.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

March
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jim Daley
Principal Built 
Environment Officer
Tel: 01733 453522
Jim.daly@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Premier Fitness 
Invest to Save Scheme - 
To authorise investment in 
developing Vivacity 
Premier Fitness on an 
invest to save basis

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

March 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Corporate Director 
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rouh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

Extension of Current 
Adult Social Care 
Contracts – To approve 
the extension of Mental 
Health Employment, 
Wellbeing and Recovery 
Services contracts from 1 
October 2015 and 30 Nov 
2016 due to 
reconfiguration of the 
contract.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy 
Leader and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health

March 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

122



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Delegation of Authority -
To delegate authority for 
funding governance 
arrangements for care 
placements for Looked 
After Children to the 
Service Director – 
Safeguarding and 
Children for a period of 12 
months.

Councillor 
Andy Coles
Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

March 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Helene Carr
Head of Service, 
Access to Resources 
and Specialist 
Commissioning 
Tel: 01733 863901
Helene.car@peterboro
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough - 
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

March 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Carrie Gamble
Commissioner
Tel: 01733 863931
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

123



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity 
Contract, CCTV and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience)
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, 
Children and Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services)
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and 
Children’s, Child Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources)
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral 
Units, Schools Infrastructure)
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality 
Improvement)

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Legal and Democratic Services 
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development)
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Information Governance, Systems Support Team, Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information)

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control)
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built 
Environment)
Opportunity Peterborough
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, 
Drainage and Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport)
Peterborough Investment Partnership

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG

124



THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

125



This page is intentionally left blank

126


	Agenda
	3(a) 6 January 2016 - Extraordinary Meeting
	3(b) 25 January 2016
	3(c) 10 February 2016 - Scrutiny of the Budget
	4 Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions
	4. Appendix 1 - Call In Request Form  final
	4. Appendix 2 - Cabinet Report PUBLIC
	4. Council Office Consolidation
	4. Appendix 1 - Outline of Business Case Assumptions
	4. Appendix 2 - Summary Business Case
	4.  Appendix 3 - Revised Capital Profile
	By virtue of paragraph

	4. Appendix 3 - Decision Details

	5 Opportunity Peterborough Update Report
	5. Appendix 2 - Peterborough-Economic-Intelligence-Report.-October-2015-Final

	6 Local Enterprise Partnership
	6. Appendix 1 LEP Presentation

	7 Alternative Governance Arrangements
	8 Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	8. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions  4 April 2016




